
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

(530) 677-2231 Phone 
(530) 677-2201 Fax 

www.cameronpark.org 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Board of Directors’ Meetings are held 
Third Wednesday of the Month 

 

 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, August 19, 2020 
 6:30 p.m. 
 

TELECONFERENCE ZOOM MEETING 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87083824486 

 
Meeting ID: 870 8382 4486 

(Teleconference/Electronic Meeting Protocols are attached) 
  

 
 

Board Members 
Monique Scobey 

Eric Aiston 
Felicity Carlson 

Ellie Wooten 
Holly Morrison 

President 
Vice President 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

http://www.cameronpark.org/


                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
Regular Meeting August 19, 2020 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

1. Roll Call  
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an issue is 
allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the consent of the Board; 
individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the audience are asked to volunteer their 
name before addressing the Board.  The Board reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 

 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
The Board will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda and motion to adopt the Agenda. 
 

3. Adopt the Agenda 
    

 
RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as 
volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens. 
 

Recognition of Service to the District – Kate Magoolaghan 
   

 
OPEN FORUM FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of 
Directors. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
The following Consent Agenda items are considered routine and will be acted upon by the Board without discussion with 
one vote.  Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a Board member or a member of the audience and 
placed under General Business #8 to be discussed and acted upon individually. 

 

4. Conformed Agenda – Board of Directors Meeting July 15, 2020 
5. General Manager’s Report 
6. APPROVE Budget Preparation Policy 3020 
7. RECEIVE AND FILE Annual Disclosure of Board of Directors and Employee Reimbursements  

 
 
 



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
Regular Meeting August 19, 2020 
 

 
GENERAL BUSINESS   
For purposes of the Brown Act §54954.2 (a), items below provide a brief description of each item of business to be 
transacted or discussed.  Recommendations of the staff, as shown, do not prevent the Board from taking other action. 

 
8. Items removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – APPROVE Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget and APPROVE Resolution 2020-17 

Adopting the Cameron Park Community Services District Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget 
10. PUBLIC HEARING – APPROVE Resolution 2020-18 Approving an Amendment to the Agreement 

Between Cameron Park Community Services District and Waste Connection of California, Inc. doing 
business as El Dorado Disposal Services, and Establishing Rates for the Collection of Solid Waste 
within the Cameron Park Community Services District 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – APPROVE Resolution 2020-19 Stating the Purposes and Fixing the Amount of 
Money to be Raised by Taxation to the District to Pay Voter Approved Debt for the Fiscal Year    
2020-21 and Setting the Tax Rate 

 
 
BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS 
At this time, the Board and staff are provided the opportunity to speak on various issues.  Direction by the President may 
be given; however, no action may be taken unless the Board agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   

 
12. General Matters to/from Board Members and Staff 

• Upcoming Trainings & Community Meetings 
- Special District Leadership Academy – 4 virtual modules (monthly, dates vary) 
- CSDA Virtual Workshop: Financial Management for Special Districts – Tuesday, August 18th 

& Wednesday, August 19th from 9am-12pm each day 

13. Local Area Formation Commission (LAFCO)   
14. Committee Reports 

a. Budget & Administration   
b. Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions (CC&R)   
c. Fire & Emergency Services 
d. Parks & Recreation 
e. Solar Energy Ad Hoc 

 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
Regular Meeting August 19, 2020 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

Please contact the District office at (530) 677-2231 or admin@cameronpark.org if you require public 
documents in alternate formats or accommodation during public meetings.  For the public’s information, we 

are now taking email requests at admin@cameronpark.org for future notification of  
Cameron Park Community Services District meetings. 

 
 

mailto:admin@cameronpark.org
mailto:admin@cameronpark.org


 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Teleconference/Electronic                                               
Meeting Protocols 

Cameron Park Community Services District 
(Effective April 2, 2020)  

 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsome proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in 
California as a result of the threat of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, March 17, 2020, Governor Newsome issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending 
parts of the Brown Act that required in-person attendance of Board members and citizens at public 
meetings; and 

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, Governor Newsome issued Executive Order N-33-20 directing 
most individuals to shelter at home or at their place of residence. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Cameron Park Community Services District will implement the 
following protocols for its Board and committee meetings. 

The guidance below provides useful information for accessing Cameron Park 
Community Services District (“District”) meetings remotely and establishing protocols 
for productive meetings. 
 
BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS:  

• Attendance.  Board and Committee Members should attend District meetings 
remotely from their homes, offices, or an alternative off-site location.  As per the 
Governor’s updated Executive Order N-29-20, there is no longer a requirement to post 
agendas at or identify the address of these locations.  

• Agendas.  Agenda packages will be made available on the District’s website. They 
will also be sent by email to all Board and Committee Members.  Note that under the 
circumstances, District staff may not be able to send paper packets.  

• Board and Committee Member Participation. Meeting Chair(s) will recognize 
individual Board and Committee Members and unmute their device so that 
comments may be heard or will read comments if they are provided in writing only.  

 



 

Teleconference/Electronic Meeting Protocols    Page 2 of 3 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  

• Attendance.  The District’s office will remain closed to the public until further notice. 
Members of the public will be able to hear and/or see public meetings via phone, 
computer, or smart device. Information about how to observe the meeting is listed on 
the agenda of each meeting. 

• Agendas.  Agendas will be made available on the District’s website and to any 
members of the public who have a standing request, as provided for in the Brown Act.  

• Public Participation.  The public can observe and participate in a meeting as 
 follows:  

 
 How to Observe the Meeting: 

o Telephone:  Listen to the meeting live by calling Zoom at (669) 900-6833 or 
(346) 248 7799. Enter the Meeting ID# listed at the top of the applicable Board 
or Committee agenda followed by the pound (#) key.  More phone numbers 
can be found on Zoom’s website at https://us04web.zoom.us/u/fdDUTmZgMZ if 
the line is busy. 

o Computer:  Watch the live streaming of the meeting from a computer by 
navigating to the link listed at the top of the applicable Board or Committee 
agenda using a computer with internet access that meets Zoom’s system 
requirements (https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-
Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux) 

o Mobile:  Log in through the Zoom mobile app on a smartphone and enter the 
Meeting ID# listed at the top of the applicable Board or Committee agenda. 

 
 How to Submit Public Comments: 

o Before the Meeting: Please email your comments to admin@cameronpark.org, 
with “Public Comment” in the subject line. In the body of the email, include 
the agenda item number and title, as well as your comments.  If you would like 
your comment to be read aloud at the meeting (not to exceed 3 minutes at 
staff’s cadence), prominently write “Read Aloud at Meeting” at the top of the 
email. Emails running longer than the time limit will not be finished.  All 
comments received at least 2 hours prior to the meeting on the day the meeting 
will be held, will be included as an agenda supplement on the District’s website 

https://us04web.zoom.us/u/fdDUTmZgMZ
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux


 

Teleconference/Electronic Meeting Protocols    Page 3 of 3 
 

under the relevant meeting date, and provided to the Directors/Committee 
Members at the meeting. Comments received after that time will be treated as 
contemporaneous comments. 

o Contemporaneous Comments: During the meeting, the Board 
President/Committee Chair or designee will announce the opportunity to 
make public comments.  If you would like to make a comment during this time, 
you may do so by clicking the “raise hand” button.  You will be addressed and 
un-muted when it is your turn to speak (not to exceed the 3 minute public 
comment time limit). 

 
FOR ALL PARTICIPANTS:  

• Get Connected: Please download Zoom application for your device and 
familiarize yourself with how to utilize this tool. There is no cost for using the 
application.  

• Ensure Quiet. All audience members will be muted during the meeting until they 
are addressed by the Board/Committee as their time to speak.  Please make every 
effort to find a location with limited ambient noise. Please turn off the ringer on 
your phone and other notification sounds on your devices to reduce interruptions.  

 
We anticipate that this process of moving to remote meetings will likely include some 
challenges.  Please bear with us as we navigate this process. 



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

(530) 677-2231 Phone 
(530) 677-2201 Fax 

www.cameronpark.org 

CONFORMED AGENDA 
 

Regular Board of Directors’ Meetings are held 
Third Wednesday of the Month 

 

 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, July 15, 2020 

 6:30 p.m. 
 

TELECONFERENCE ZOOM MEETING 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84259922211 

 
Meeting ID: 842 5992 2211 

(Teleconference/Electronic Meeting Protocols are attached) 
  
 

 
 

Board Members 
Monique Scobey 

Eric Aiston 
Felicity Carlson 

Ellie Wooten 
Holly Morrison 

President 
Vice President 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

http://www.cameronpark.org/


                                                                                               
   CONFORMED AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 2 of 6 
Regular Meeting July 15, 2020 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER – 6:34pm 

1. Roll Call – MS/EA/FC/HM (EW was absent) 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an issue is 
allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the consent of the Board; 
individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the audience are asked to volunteer their 
name before addressing the Board.  The Board reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 

 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
The Board will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda and motion to adopt the Agenda. 
 

3. Adopt the Agenda 
 
   Motion to adopt the Agenda. 

 
FC/HM – Motion Passed 
Ayes – MS, EA, FC, HM 
Noes – None 
Absent – EW 

         Abstain – None 
    

 
RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as 
volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens. 
 

El Dorado County COVID-19 Update 
(Don Ashton, Chief Administrative Officer & Nancy Williams, County Health Officer) 

   
 

OPEN FORUM FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of 
Directors. 

 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                               
   CONFORMED AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 3 of 6 
Regular Meeting July 15, 2020 
 

 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
The following Consent Agenda items are considered routine and will be acted upon by the Board without discussion with 
one vote.  Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a Board member or a member of the audience and 
placed under General Business #8 to be discussed and acted upon individually. 

 

4. Conformed Agenda – Board of Directors Meeting June 17, 2020 
5. Conformed Agenda – Board of Directors Meeting June 24, 2020 
6. Conformed Agenda – LLAD Ad Hoc Committee Meeting July 6, 2020 
7. General Manager’s Report 

 
   Motion to adopt the Conformed Agenda with the following correction: 
 

- Item #5, page 5 under MS Matters to/from – change “Citizens Climbing Lobby” to 
“Citizens Climate Lobby”. 

 
FC/EA – Motion Passed 
Ayes – MS, EA, FC, HM 
Noes – None 
Absent – EW 

         Abstain – None 
 

 
GENERAL BUSINESS   
For purposes of the Brown Act §54954.2 (a), items below provide a brief description of each item of business to be 
transacted or discussed.  Recommendations of the staff, as shown, do not prevent the Board from taking other action. 

 
8. Items removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 
9. PUBLIC HEARING - El Dorado Disposal/Waste Connections Proposed Amendment and Rate 

Adjustment 
 

- Opened Public Hearing for public comment; closed Public Hearing.  Item continued to next 
month’s Board of Directors Meeting in anticipation of further information from El Dorado County 
Board of Supervisors. 

 
10. RECEIVE & FILE Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District Ad Hoc Committee Final Report 

 
 
 



                                                                                               
   CONFORMED AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 4 of 6 
Regular Meeting July 15, 2020 
 

 
11. PUBLIC HEARING - APPROVE Resolution 2020-16 Approving Engineer’s Report, Confirming Diagram 

and Assessment, and Directing Auditor of El Dorado County to Continue and to Collect Assessment 
for the Fiscal Year 2020-21 

 
   Motion to approve Resolution 2020-16 Approving Engineer’s Report, Confirming Diagram and 
   Assessment, and Directing Auditor of El Dorado County to Continue and to Collect Assessment 
   for the Fiscal Year 2020-21 

 
HM/FC – Motion Passed 
Ayes – MS, EA, FC, HM 
Noes – None 
Absent – EW 

         Abstain – None 
 

12. APPROVE Response to El Dorado County Grand Jury 19-06 West Slope Protection Update 
 
   Motion to approve Response to El Dorado County Grand Jury 19-06 West Slope Protection 
   Update as noted in the cover report. 

 
EA/MS – Motion Passed 
Ayes – MS, EA, FC 
Noes – None 
Absent – EW 

         Abstain – HM 
 
 
BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS 
At this time, the Board and staff are provided the opportunity to speak on various issues.  Direction by the President may 
be given; however, no action may be taken unless the Board agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   

 
13. General Matters to/from Board Members and Staff 

• Upcoming Trainings & Community Meetings 
- Special District Leadership Academy – Tuesday, August 25th & Wednesday, September 16th 

(virtual modules #1 & #2), or  September 27th (in-person – all 4 modules, South Lake Tahoe) 
- CSDA Webinar: Why Diversity & Inclusion Matters – Tuesday, July 28th 1:00-2:00pm 
- CSDA Virtual Bingo – Thursday, August 6th 3:00-4:30pm 
- CSDA Virtual Workshop: Financial Management for Special Districts – August 18th & 19th 

9:00am-12:pm (each day) 



                                                                                               
   CONFORMED AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 5 of 6 
Regular Meeting July 15, 2020 
 

 
 JR – gave COVID update on operations at the District.  
 EA – commented that it was good to see the community at the pool, gym, and the sports fields. 
 FC – encouraged everyone be cautious regarding the pandemic. 
 

14. Local Area Formation Commission (LAFCO)  
15. Committee Reports 

a. Budget & Administration   
b. Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions (CC&R)   
c. Fire & Emergency Services 
d. Parks & Recreation 
e. Solar Energy Ad Hoc 
f. Landscaping & Lighting Assessments Districts (LLAD) Ad Hoc  

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, members of the public may speak on any closed session agenda item.  Closed sessions may be called as 
necessary for personnel, litigation, and labor relations or to meet the negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange, 
or lease of real property.  Members of the public may address the Board prior to closing the meeting.   
 
 
CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION 
The Board will recess to closed session to discuss the following item(s): 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code §54956.9 
 

 Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (1 case) 
 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION AND REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 
Pursuant to Government Code §54957.1, the legislative body of any local agency shall publicly report any action taken 
in closed session and the vote or abstention of every member present thereon.   
 

- The Board discussed in closed session the items agendized for closed session discussion and 
direction was given to staff. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT – 9:35pm 
 
 



                                                                                               
   CONFORMED AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 6 of 6 
Regular Meeting July 15, 2020 
 

 
Please contact the District office at (530) 677-2231 or admin@cameronpark.org if you require public 

documents in alternate formats or accommodation during public meetings.  For the public’s information, we 
are now taking email requests at admin@cameronpark.org for future notification of  

Cameron Park Community Services District meetings. 
 

 

mailto:admin@cameronpark.org
mailto:admin@cameronpark.org


  

Page 1 of 3 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 19, 2020 
  
FROM: Jill Ritzman, General Manager 
     
AGENDA ITEM #5: GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
Collectively, staff is re-grouping about COVID work plans and status of District 
operations. When staff developed work plans last March, it was based upon a concept 
that precautions for the pandemic would last a few months.  Now that we’re five months 
into the pandemic, and realizing it may be another six months or more before precautions 
are lifted, staff is re-evaluating our operations to be sure that the District is protecting 
residents, connecting with community members, and keeping staff and residents safe.   
 

The first all-staff meeting was held in July via Zoom, a new experience for many staff 
who connected from their work cell phone while sitting in their District vehicle.  It was 
great fun to have everyone together.  Mike Grassle provided a presentation about the 
District’s draft Park Improvement Plan.  The leadership team, comprised of the District 
managers and supervisors, began meeting in person appropriately socially distanced.   
While remote access serves an important purpose, we all agreed that more thorough and 
productive conversations occur in-person.  
 

The District joined the El Dorado County Senior Services Ad Hoc Work Group.  Staff has 
experienced difficulty in connecting with seniors during the pandemic, it is our hope that 
additional partnerships and resources will help bridge the gap.  I also attended the 
Commission on Aging meeting held via Zoom.  During the meeting, a Public Hearing 
was held regarding the County’s Area 4 Plan which outlines priorities and how the 
County will implement senior services. 
 

The Community Center is receiving some very important, low-cost wayfinding 
improvements.  Entry doors are being labeled clearly, especially Classrooms A and B that 



General Manager’s Report August 19, 2020 Page 2 of 3 
 

now have extra-large signage able to be seen from the entrance.  Sign, Banner, Print is the 
vendor working with staff.  The project is progressing slowly due to COVID. 
 

Registration with the federal government for funding is finally complete.  The FEMA 
invoice for the District’s COVID expenses can now be submitted.  The County Board of 
Supervisors allocated $6,776 to the District, presumably for the District’s request for a 
25% match to FEMA funding and sick leave funding.  County staff have not contacted 
the District yet regarding the details and requirements of the allocation.   
 
Parks  
Staff was pleased to work with the Parks and Recreation Committee to finalize the Park 
Improvement Plan in preparation for a Board presentation in September.  Staff and 
Felicity Carlson met with the Rotary Club to discuss the plan and how Rotary can support 
the Plan, now and into the future.  Staff is also researching improvements needed on the 
District’s sports fields to bring the fields up to industry standards.  This project 
description and costs will be an additional element for the Park Improvement Plan 
discussion.   
 

The District’s Parks Department participated in the “July is Parks and Rec Month” 
campaign with the National Recreation and Parks Association.   Parks Departments from 
around the country highlighted Parks staff with the #WeareParksandRec.  District staff 
shared their thoughts and stories about working in the park system and interacting with 
park users.  This endeavor was coordinated by the Recreation staff and great fun was had 
by all, including residents who enjoyed their stories.   
 
Recreation  
Aquatics programming is expanding and fully embraced by community members.  Aqua 
Body Strong classes are filling fast, and provide a safe way for adults and seniors to 
exercise.  Private swim lessons for individuals and families are popular as well.  The 
number of adult lap swimmers has more than doubled.  Sierra Sharks finished their short 
season last week, and AquaSol continues with their training.  The lifeguard team has 
received numerous compliments about their positivity and professionalism.   
 

The Virtual Recreation Center is becoming more popular, and receiving great 
compliments from those who have participated. Virtual Cookie Decorating had ten youth 



General Manager’s Report August 19, 2020 Page 3 of 3 
 

participate; Minute to Win It Challenge had only two youth (but they had an awesome 
time); Puzzle Palooza had four families compete to assemble a puzzle in an hour; three 
families participated in the Photo Scavenger Hunt and a DIY Fishing Tournament is 
happening this week.  Staff is working with Senior Nutrition to organize another Bingo 
event.  While attendance has been low, interest is growing as word spreads about the fun.   
 
Fire Department 
The Fire Department received two grants for replacement of aged radios and heart 
monitors!  A great job by Fire staff who wrote and submitted the grants.   
 

Staff is taking final steps on an environmental document for fire fuel reduction projects 
funded by the CA Climate Investment grant.  The environmental document will be 
presented to the Fire Committee in September, and then the Board of Directors.  
 

Staff continues to work with contractors regarding the plans and specifications for the 
Training Tower base work, for presentation to the Fire Committee and Board of Directors.   
 

A meeting was held with the property owner who was appealing the weed abatement 
ordinance lien.  The property boundaries were determined and a payment plan (outside 
of the lien process) was develop for payment of fees.   
 
CC&R Office  
The District is in the process of recruiting a new CC&R Officer.  Initial panel interviews 
were conducted with the chairs of the CC&R and ARC Committees.  Staff is hopeful to 
hire a qualified individual by the end of the month.  Mike Grassle and Niki Garrison 
assumed responsibility for Architectural Review.  CC&R complaints are being taken 
through the District website, and will be address in the order received and according to 
the established priority list as soon as the position is filled.    
 
Solar Energy Ad Hoc Committee 
ARC Consultants and staff have met several times in the past few months.  Three 
proposals were received from solar vendors.  They are now investigating financing 
options, including a power purchase agreement with the vendor, financing with Umpqua 
bank, and a government low-interest loan program.  The proposals and financing options 
will be provided to the Committee in the next few weeks.   



  

 

 
 Cameron Park 

Community Services District 
 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 19, 2020 
  
FROM: Jill Ritzman, General Manager 
     
AGENDA ITEM #6: POLICY 3020 – BUDGET PREPARATION, PROPOSED REVISION 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  APPROVE  
 
Background 
In July, the Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (LLAD) Ad Hoc Committee 
provided their final report to the Board of Directors.  The Committee recommended that 
Policy 3020 – Budget Preparation, be revised to more accurately reflect the budget 
development process, roles and responsibilities of staff and the Board.   
 
LLAD Ad Hoc Committee 

The LLAD Ad Hoc Committee met on July 6 to finalize their work with staff and their 
report to the Board of Directors.  The Committee recommends that the Board approve 
revisions to Policy 3020 – Budget Preparation (Attachment 6A).   
 
Attachment 

6A – Policy 3020 Budget Preparation in track changes 

  



Adopted 12/19/07 tbd 2020 3020 - 1 

Cameron Park Community Services District 
POLICY HANDBOOK 

POLICY TITLE: Budget Preparation 
POLICY NUMBER: 3020  

3020.1 An annual budget proposal shall be prepared by the General Manager. 
3020.1 The Board of Directors shall approve a Preliminary budget for all funds, General 
and Special Funds, by June 30 and a Final budget for all funds to be appropriated by 
September 1 to meet state legal requirements. 

3020.2 The Board of Directors shall approve Preliminary and Final Landscaping and 
Lighting District budgets in an Engineer’s Report to meet annual tax assessment 
requirements.  

3020.3 The General Manager shall propose a budget development calendar for the 
District’s Preliminary and Final budgets for all District funds, which will be approved by 
the Board of Directors.  

3020.4 The General Manager shall prepare an annual Preliminary and Final budget 
proposal for all District Funds for appropriation.   

3020.25 Prior to review by the Board of Directors, tThe Board’s standing Budget and 
Administration Finance Committee shall meet with the General Manager and review his/
her annual budget proposals prior to review by the Board of Directors.   

3020.36 The annual proposed annualPreliminary and Final budgets as reviewed and 
amended by the Budget and Administration Finance Committee shall be forwarded to 
the Board of Directors for final review and adoption. reviewed by the Board at its regular 
meeting in May. 

3020.4 The proposed annual budget as amended by the Board during its review shall be 
adopted at its regular meeting in June.   

Attachment 6A



  

 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
DATE:  August 19, 2020 
  
FROM:  Vicky Neibauer, Finance/HR Officer 
  
AGENDA ITEM #7: ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEE 

REIMBURSEMENT  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
Section 53065.5 of the California Government Code requires special districts to disclose any 
reimbursement paid to Board Members and employees by Cameron Park Community 
Services District (District) in the preceding Fiscal Year of at least $100 for each individual 
charge for services or products received. The disclosure requirement is fulfilled by including 
the reimbursement information in a document published and made available for public 
inspection at least annually. 
 
The attached report includes individual charges for services or products received of at least 
$100 for the Fiscal Year 2019-20. The report will be posted on the District webpage as well as 
the District Information Board to fulfill the “publishing and availability for public inspection” 
requirement.  Posting to the District website also meets a requirement for the District 
Transparency Certificate of Excellence from the California Special District Association.  
 
The Budget and Administration Committee reviewed the report and supported forwarding 
to the Board of Directors. 
 
Attachments: 
7A - Board Member Reimbursement Report  
7B - Employee Reimbursement Report  



Effective Date Payee Document Description Expenses

7/18/2019 Ellamae J. Wooten Director's Comp. Mtgs 06/24,
26 & 07/01, 17

400.00

8/22/2019 Ellamae J. Wooten Dir Comp Mtgs 08/05,21 200.00
9/19/2019 Ellamae J. Wooten Dir Comp Mtgs 09/10,16,18 300.00
10/17/2019 Ellamae J. Wooten Dir Comp Mtgs 10/01, 16

2019
200.00

11/21/2019 Ellamae J. Wooten Dir Comp Mtgs 11/04,04,20 300.00
12/19/2019 Ellamae J. Wooten Dir Comp Mtgs 12/02, 12/18 200.00
1/23/2020 Ellamae J. Wooten Dir Comp Mtgs 01/06,15 200.00
2/20/2020 Ellamae J. Wooten DC Mtgs

02/03,02/04,02/19/20
300.00

3/24/2020 Ellamae J. Wooten Dir Comp Mtgs 02/25, 03/02,
03/18

300.00

4/16/2020 Ellamae J. Wooten Dir Comp Mtg 04/15/20 100.00
5/21/2020 Ellamae J. Wooten Dir Comp Mtgs 05/04, 05/05,

05/20/20
300.00

2,800.00

Total Ellamae J. Wooten 2,800.00

7/25/2019 Eric William Blodgett Aiston Dir Comp for mtgs 06/26,
07/02, 17 2019

300.00

8/22/2019 Eric William Blodgett Aiston Dir Comp Mtgs 08/06,21 200.00
9/19/2019 Eric William Blodgett Aiston Dir Comp Mtgs 09/03,10,18 300.00
10/17/2019 Eric William Blodgett Aiston Dir Comp Mtgs 10/01,16 2019 200.00
11/21/2019 Eric William Blodgett Aiston Dir Comp Mtgs 11/05, 20 200.00
12/19/2019 Eric William Blodgett Aiston Dir Comp Mtgs 12/03,18 200.00
1/23/2020 Eric William Blodgett Aiston Dir Comp Mtgs 01/07,07,15 300.00
2/20/2020 Eric William Blodgett Aiston DC mtgs 02/04, 02/19/20 200.00
3/23/2020 Eric William Blodgett Aiston Dir Comp Mtgs 02/25, 03/03,

03/18
300.00

6/30/2020 Eric William Blodgett Aiston Dir Comp Mtgs 06/02,17,24
FY 19/20

300.00

2,500.00

Cameron Park Community Services District
Vendor Activity

From 7/1/2019 Through 6/30/2020

Date: 8/6/20 06:09:15 PM Page: 1Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column.

Attachment 7A



Effective Date Payee Document Description Expenses

Total Eric William Blodgett Aiston 2,500.00
7/25/2019 Felicity Wood Carlson Dir Comp for mtgs 06/24, 26

& 07/01/19
300.00

8/22/2019 Felicity Wood Carlson Dir Comp Mtgs 08/05,06,21 300.00
9/19/2019 Felicity Wood Carlson Dir Comp Mtgs 09/10, 18 200.00
10/17/2019 Felicity Wood Carlson Dir Comp mtgs 10/08,16 2019 200.00
11/21/2019 Felicity Wood Carlson Dir Comp mtgs 11/04,05,20 300.00
12/19/2019 Felicity Wood Carlson Dir Comp Ntgs 12/02,3,18 300.00
1/23/2020 Felicity Wood Carlson Dir Comp Mtgs 01/06,06,15 300.00
2/20/2020 Felicity Wood Carlson DC Mtgs

02/03,02/03,02/19/20
300.00

3/30/2020 Felicity Wood Carlson Dir Comp Mtgs
02/25,03/02,03/18

300.00

4/15/2020 Felicity Wood Carlson Dir Comp Mtg 04/15/20 100.00
5/31/2020 Felicity Wood Carlson Dir Comp Mtgs 05/04,04,20 300.00
6/29/2020 Felicity Wood Carlson Dir Comp Mtgs 06/17 &

06/24/20
200.00

3,100.00

Total Felicity Wood Carlson 3,100.00

7/18/2019 Holly Morrison Director's Comp. Mtgs
06/24,26 & 07/01,17

400.00

8/22/2019 Holly Morrison Dir Comp Mtgs 08/05,06,21 300.00
9/19/2019 Holly Morrison Dir Comp Mtgs 09/09,10,18 300.00
10/17/2019 Holly Morrison Dir Comp Mtgs 10/07,08,10

2019
300.00

11/21/2019 Holly Morrison Dir Comp Mtgs 11/04,05,20 300.00
12/19/2019 Holly Morrison Dir Comp Mtgs 12/03, 12/18

(x2)
300.00

1/23/2020 Holly Morrison Dir Comp Mtgs 01/06,15 200.00
2/20/2020 Holly Morrison DC Mtgs 02/03, 02/19/20 200.00
3/23/2020 Holly Morrison Dir Comp Mtgs

02/25,03/02,03/18
300.00

Cameron Park Community Services District
Vendor Activity

From 7/1/2019 Through 6/30/2020

Date: 8/6/20 06:09:15 PM Page: 2Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column.

Attachment 7A

2,600.00Total Holly Morrison



Check Date Name
Check
Amount Description

7/3/2019 Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell Allowance - July 2019
8/1/2019 Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell Allowance - August

2019
9/5/2019 Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell Allowance -

September 2019
9/5/2019 Jill Ritzman 770.45 Reimb Soc Sec refund

IRS Nov/Dec Q4 2017
Amended 941

9/19/2019 Jill Ritzman 154.44 Helm Retirement framed
photo - Reimb

10/3/2019 Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell Allowance - October
2019

11/7/2019 Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell Allowance - Nov.
2019

12/5/2019 Jill Ritzman 100.00 cell allowance Dec 2019
1/9/2020 Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell allowance - Jan. 2020

1/30/2020 Jill Ritzman 168.27 Staff Dev/Trng lunch -
Reimb for 01/24/20

2/6/2020 Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell Allowance - Feb 2020
3/5/2020 Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell allowance - March

2020
4/2/2020 Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell Allowance - April

2020
5/7/2020 Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell allowance May 2020
6/4/2020 Jill Ritzman 100.00 Cell Allowance - June

2020
Total Jill Ritzman 2,293.16

Cameron Park Community Services District
Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

Jill Ritzman
From 7/1/2019 Through 6/30/2020

Date: 8/6/20 07:15:08 PM

Attachment 7B

1



Check Date Name
Check
Amount Description

9/5/2019 Laura Sanders-Ito 109.12 Mileage/Parking Reimb
July & Aug 2019

Total Laura Sanders-Ito 109.12

Cameron Park Community Services District
Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

Laura Sanders-Ito
From 7/1/2019 Through 6/30/2020

Date: 8/6/20 07:15:08 PM

Attachment 7B

2



Check Date Name
Check
Amount Description

7/3/2019 Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell Allowance - July 2019
7/11/2019 Michael Grassle 161.24 Mileage Reimb - June

2019
8/1/2019 Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell Allowance - August

2019
8/8/2019 Michael Grassle 125.28 mileage reimb - July 2019
9/5/2019 Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell Allowance -

September 2019
10/3/2019 Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell Allowance - October

2019
10/17/2019 Michael Grassle 102.08 Mileage Reimb - Sept.

2019
11/7/2019 Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell Allowance - Nov.

2019
12/5/2019 Michael Grassle 100.00 cell allowance Dec 2019
1/9/2020 Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell allowance - Jan 2020
2/6/2020 Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell Allowance - Feb 2020
3/5/2020 Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell allowance - March

2020
4/2/2020 Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell Allowance - April

2020
5/7/2020 Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell allowance May 2020
6/4/2020 Michael Grassle 100.00 Cell Allowance, June 2020

Total Michael Grassle 1,588.60

Cameron Park Community Services District
Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

Michael Grassle
From 7/1/2019 Through 6/30/2020

Date: 8/6/20 07:15:08 PM

Attachment 7B

3



Check Date Name
Check
Amount Description

3/13/2020 Whitney Kahn 100.00 Cell Phone Allowance,
March 2020 (first)

4/2/2020 Whitney Kahn 100.00 Cell Allowance - April
2020

5/7/2020 Whitney Kahn 100.00 Cell Allowance May 2020
6/4/2020 Whitney Kahn 100.00 Cell Allowance - June

2020
Total Whitney Kahn 400.00

Report Total 4,390.88

Cameron Park Community Services District
Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

Whitney Kahn
From 7/1/2019 Through 6/30/2020

Date: 8/6/20 07:15:08 PM

Attachment 7B

4



Check Date Payee
Check
Amount Description

9/19/2019 Brett Lanning 150.00 Work Boots - Reimb
09/10/19

Total Brett Lanning 150.00

4/23/2020 Jose Cortes 150.00 Boot reimbursement,
parks emp 04/16/20

Total Jose Cortes 150.00

Report Total 300.00

Cameron Park Community Services District
Check/Voucher Register - Check Register

From 7/1/2019 Through 6/30/2020

Date: 8/6/20 08:20:14 PM

Attachment 7B

5



  

Page 1 of 3 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 19, 2020  
  
FROM: Vicky Neibauer, Finance/HR Officer 
     
AGENDA ITEM #9: PUBLIC HEARING – APPROVE PROPOSED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 

2020-2021 BUDGETS FOR GENERAL FUND 001 AND SPECIAL 

FUNDS   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  APPROVE FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 BUDGET AND APPROVE 

RESOLUTION 2020-17 

 
INTRODUCTION 
The Board of Directors approved a Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 in June 
2020.  This report summarizes budget updates from the Preliminary to Final Budgets for the 
funds listed below.  The purpose of the changes is to update budget for accuracy based on 
updated project costs, last year’s actual costs and updated costs from vendors.    

• Fund 01 - General Fund;  
• Fund 80 - Recreation Facilities and Parks Reserves; 
• Fund 07 – Fire and Emergency Services Reserves; 
• Landscaping and Lighting Special Districts various funds.    

 
By law, the annual Final Budget must be approved by September 1st.  The FY 2020-21 Final 
Budget should be considered a “Base Budget” and does not consider impacts from the 
COVID-19 Pandemic. Staff intends to present any necessary adjustments at Mid-Year for 
approval by the Board of Directors.  Staff anticipates bringing FY 2019-20 unaudited actuals 
in September.  
 
BUDGET AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
The Budget and Administration Committee reviewed the report and supported forwarding 
to the Board of Directors for consideration. 
 



Proposed Final FY20-21 Budget August 19, 2020 Page 2 of 3 
 

DISCUSSION 
Fund 01 - General Fund Summary  
The Final Budget includes expenditures of $6,697,150 with offsetting revenues, including 
Property Tax allocations of $6,700,193, equating to a positive balance of $3,043.  

Property tax estimate remains at a conservative 3.4% increase.  For the past three years, 
actual collections are trending at a higher annual percentage rate.   
 
Employee Costs 
The overall salary and benefit costs for all employees has a net decrease ($9,025) from the 
Preliminary Budget.  Budget changes are the result of: 

• Increases in the CalPERS retirement rate, workers compensation costs, and health 
benefits, 

• Eliminating Administration (Safety Coordinator/Backup Receptionist) and Weed 
Abatement part-time hours. 

 

Cost of Professional Services increase ($16,683) to fund the balance of the Solar Consultant 
for the remaining contract amount from FY 2019-20. 
 
Cost of Misc Items decreases include: 

• CalPERS Pension Unfunded liability decrease ($4,731), 

• Recreation program instructors decrease ($3,194). 
 
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment Districts (LLAD) 
When developing the LLAD Budgets, staff considered the work of the LLAD Ad Hoc 
Committee.  Better budget and accounting practices are being applied by staff, such as 
ensuring that utilities are being budgeted and charged appropriately to water and 
electricity.  Staff applied strategies recommended by the Committee, which are reflected 
in the LLAD Budgets as well as the Engineer’s Report which is used to develop the tax 
assessment.  
 
After a careful review of the LLADs Preliminary budgets, adjustments to several line 
items were made for accuracy, especially addressing the reduction/addition to Utilities 
(net $1,906 total change). 



Proposed Final FY20-21 Budget August 19, 2020 Page 3 of 3 
 

Special Funds 
Fund 80 - Facilities and Parks Reserve Budget changes include increased expenditures 
for: 

• The parks master plan contract balance from FY 2019-20 ($4,694); 

• The Energy Efficient LED lighting project costs and PG&E participation revenue 
($16,830) - cost to be reimbursed to Fund from utility savings.  

 
Fund 07 - Fire and Emergency Reserve Budget changes include increased expenditures 
for: 

• The Energy Efficient LED lighting project costs for Station 89 ($13,044); 

• Re-budget of new fire engine equipment from FY 2019-20 ($33,357) - cost to be 
reimbursed to Fund from utility savings.  
 

The Fire Department has been awarded a grant for heart monitors, which was budgeted; 
and radios which will be budgeted at Mid-Year when more details are available.   
  
CONCLUSION 
Over the past two fiscal years, staff worked very hard to analyze District operations and 
to provide a basis for a long-term sustainable budget.   The District’s budget will continue 
to evolve and change, as evidenced by the current COVID-19 pandemic.  Staff 
acknowledges that more work is needed to reduce the operations budget further to 
adequately fund future necessary capital improvements.  For FY 2020-21, staff is 
providing a balanced budget that is continuing the District’s essential and priority 
programs and services.   
 
Attachments:  
9A – FY 2020-21 Final Budget Summary  
9B – FY 2020-21 Fund Balance Summary, General Fund 01 
9C – Cameron Park Community Services District FY2020-21 Final Budget Report 
9D – Resolution 2020-17 



Cameron Park Community Services District
Final Budget Summary
Fiscal Year 2020-2021

August 19, 2020

Attachment 9A

8/14/2020 1

 *** Capital Asset Reserves

 Fixed Costs Admin Fire Weed Ord Parks Comm Cntr Recr Total
Fire and 

Emergency

 Recreation 
Facilities and 

Parks 
Revenues - fees & other sources -                228,200       1,210,000    91,120          132,263       209,894       501,655       2,373,132    347,000       11,652          
Property Tax allocation 422,585       363,712       2,921,211    35,516          415,693       168,344       -                4,327,061    -                
Sub-total Revenues 422,585       591,912       4,131,211    126,636       547,956       378,238       501,655       6,700,193    347,000       11,652          
Expenditures 422,585       588,869       4,131,211    126,636       547,956       378,238       501,655       6,697,150    975,391       25,576          
(over) under -                3,043            -                -                -                -                -                3,043            (628,391)      (13,924)        
% of Total Property Tax 10% 8% 68% 1% 10% 4% 0% 100% 0% 0%

*** Fixed Costs: Cal PERS retiree health and unfunded liability, insurance, dam monitoring & permitting, LAFCO, audit services 

Operating Budget



Cameron Park Community Services Center
Fund Balances - General Fund 01

Fiscal Year 2020-21

Attachment 9B

8/14/2020

Fiscal Year 
2014-15

Fiscal Year 
2015-16

Fiscal Year 
2016-17

Fiscal Year 
2017-18

Fiscal Year 
2018-19

Fiscal Year 
2019-20

Fiscal Year 
2020-21

Fund Balance - Beginning 3,348,221 3,853,790 3,796,661 3,788,263 3,684,477 3,549,529 3,367,038

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues
     Over (Under) Expenditures 505,569 (57,129) (8,398) (103,786) * (134,948) ** (182,491) 3,043

Fund Balance - Ending 3,853,790 3,796,661 3,788,263 3,684,477 3,549,529 3,367,038 3,370,081

Committed - Stabilization Reserve 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000
 Committed - Economic Uncertainies 400,000 400,000 400,000
   Unassigned 3,853,790 3,731,661 3,723,263 3,619,477 3,084,529 2,902,038 2,905,081
   Total Fund Balances 3,853,790 3,796,661 3,788,263 3,684,477 3,549,529 3,367,038 3,370,081

Audited Fund Balances Budgeted

*The FY 2018-19 deficit is largely the result of a prior year negative revenue adjustment in the amount of $112,963 (in other words, revenue in FY2016-17 was 
counted twice and could not be corrected because an audit had been completed; the correction had to be made in FY18-19).

**The FY 2019-20 budgeted deficit is representative of the funding needed from the undesignated fund balance for capital assets (not for operations) including a 
replacement fire engine.  In FY 2020-21, capital assets are budgeted in Capital Asset Reserves, a special fund. 



Cameron Park Community Services District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

01 - General Fund
From 7/1/2020 Through 6/30/2021

06/30/2020)
(07/01/2019 - 

2019-20 
Prior Budget 

2020-21
Budget FY 
Preliminary 

Adjustments
Final  Budget 

2020-21 Budget
Total Final FY 

2020-21
2019-20 to FY 
from Budget FY 

Percentage change 

Operating Revenue
Property Taxes 4110 4,184,387.00 4,327,328.00 (267.00) 4,327,061.00 3.41%
Franchise Fees 4113 200,000.00 200,000.00 0.00 200,000.00 0.00%
Park Impact Fees 4115 52,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Quimby Fees 4120 28,554.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Fire Development 4125 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Fire Marshall Plan Review 4132 18,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 122.22%
Youth Classes 4145 38,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Adult Classes 4146 36,727.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Youth Sports 4147 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Adult Sports 4148 18,800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Camp Revenues 4149 12,800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Senior Programs 4153 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Recreation Program Revenue 4154 11,609.00 443,395.00 0.00 443,395.00 3,719.40%
Transfer In 4165 0.00 50,033.00 0.00 50,033.00 0.00%
Special Events 4170 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Park Lake Kiosk Revenues - V... 4180 21,012.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Lake Season Pass 4181 21,666.00 43,598.00 0.00 43,598.00 101.22%
Picnic Site Rentals 4182 27,436.00 1,595.00 0.00 1,595.00 (94.18)%
Summer Kids Camp 4183 42,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Cameron Park Lake Concessions 4184 3,250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
CC Facility Rentals 4185 129,114.00 60,304.00 0.00 60,304.00 (53.29)%
Gym Rentals 4186 33,650.00 27,030.00 0.00 27,030.00 (19.67)%
Pool Use Fees 4187 195,882.00 87,215.00 0.00 87,215.00 (55.47)%
Parks Fac Rev - Sports Fields 4190 27,061.00 35,642.00 0.00 35,642.00 31.70%
Donations 4250 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Sponsorships 4255 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.00%
JPA Reimbursable 4260 1,150,000.00 1,150,000.00 0.00 1,150,000.00 0.00%
Fire Apparatus Equip Rental 4262 100,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 (90.00)%
Reimbursement 4400 64,717.00 66,200.00 0.00 66,200.00 2.29%
Weed Abatement 4410 23,263.00 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 (14.02)%
Interest Income 4505 59,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 (57.62)%
Other Income 4600 121,592.00 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 (90.13)%
Grant - CI 4605 23,000.00 71,120.00 0.00 71,120.00 209.21%

Total Operating Revenue 6,821,520.00 6,700,460.00 (267.00) 6,700,193.00 (1.77)%

Expenditures
Salaries - Perm, Part time 5000 648,646.00 767,255.00 (22,477.00) 744,778.00 18.28%

Date: 7/31/20 04:33:29 PM Page: 1

Attachment 9C



Cameron Park Community Services District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

01 - General Fund
From 7/1/2020 Through 6/30/2021

06/30/2020)
(07/01/2019 - 

2019-20 
Prior Budget 

2020-21
Budget FY 
Preliminary 

Adjustments
Final  Budget 

2020-21 Budget
Total Final FY 

2020-21
2019-20 to FY 
from Budget FY 

Percentage change 

Salaries - Seasonal 5010 157,170.00 110,540.00 0.00 110,540.00 (29.66)%
Overtime 5020 5,899.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 69.52%
Health Benefit 5130 108,174.00 107,075.00 5,290.00 112,365.00 (1.01)%
Retiree Health Benefit 5135 69,042.00 91,016.00 0.00 91,016.00 31.82%
Dental Insurance 5140 9,488.00 9,663.00 0.00 9,663.00 1.84%
Vision Insurance 5150 1,460.00 1,396.00 0.00 1,396.00 (4.38)%
CalPERS Employer Retirement 5160 220,831.00 194,784.00 2,880.00 197,664.00 (11.79)%
Worker's Compensation 5170 56,127.00 53,571.00 551.00 54,122.00 (4.55)%
FICA/Medicare Employer Cont... 5180 19,963.00 23,999.00 0.00 23,999.00 20.21%
UI/TT Contribution 5190 42,188.00 8,572.00 0.00 8,572.00 (79.68)%
Advertising/Marketing 5209 30,095.00 32,010.00 0.00 32,010.00 6.36%
Agriculture 5215 18,485.00 18,685.00 0.00 18,685.00 1.08%
Audit/Accounting 5220 47,500.00 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 (36.84)%
Bank Charge 5221 14,141.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 (29.28)%
Clothing/Uniforms 5230 8,360.00 7,985.00 0.00 7,985.00 (4.48)%
Computer Software 5231 28,483.00 21,900.00 0.00 21,900.00 (23.11)%
Computer Hardware 5232 47,758.00 5,500.00 0.00 5,500.00 (88.48)%
Contractual Services 5235 20,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 (50.00)%
Contractual - Provider Services 5236 3,710,059.00 4,059,061.00 0.00 4,059,061.00 9.40%
Contract Under Utilization 5237 0.00 (250,000.00) 0.00 (250,000.00) 0.00%
Contract Services - Other 5240 106,591.00 144,942.00 0.00 144,942.00 35.97%
Director Compensation 5250 13,700.00 18,000.00 0.00 18,000.00 31.38%
EDC Department Agency 5260 4,268.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 17.15%
Educational Materials 5265 6,845.00 12,850.00 0.00 12,850.00 87.72%
Elections 5270 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00%
Equipment-Minor/Small Tools 5275 9,500.00 8,950.00 0.00 8,950.00 (5.78)%
Fire & Safety Supplies 5285 4,803.00 4,200.00 0.00 4,200.00 (12.55)%
Fire Prevention & Inspection 5290 1,800.00 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 (33.33)%
Fire Turnout Gear 5295 31,000.00 31,000.00 0.00 31,000.00 0.00%
Fire- Volunteer/Resident 5296 29,200.00 29,200.00 0.00 29,200.00 0.00%
Food 5300 4,117.00 4,500.00 0.00 4,500.00 9.30%
Fuel 5305 71,028.00 51,000.00 0.00 51,000.00 (28.19)%
Government Fees/Permits 5310 29,934.00 25,382.00 0.00 25,382.00 (15.20)%
Household Supplies 5315 26,701.00 32,500.00 0.00 32,500.00 21.71%
Instructors 5316 52,090.00 51,840.00 (3,194.00) 48,646.00 (0.47)%
Insurance 5320 103,500.00 132,300.00 0.00 132,300.00 27.82%
Legal Services 5335 14,250.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 5.26%
Maint. - Vehicle Supplies 5340 4,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 (50.00)%

Date: 7/31/20 04:33:29 PM Page: 2

Attachment 9C



Cameron Park Community Services District
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

01 - General Fund
From 7/1/2020 Through 6/30/2021

06/30/2020)
(07/01/2019 - 

2019-20 
Prior Budget 

2020-21
Budget FY 
Preliminary 

Adjustments
Final  Budget 

2020-21 Budget
Total Final FY 

2020-21
2019-20 to FY 
from Budget FY 

Percentage change 

Maint. - Buildings 5345 50,495.00 26,500.00 0.00 26,500.00 (47.51)%
Maint. - Equipment 5350 46,668.00 55,600.00 0.00 55,600.00 19.13%
Maint. - Grounds 5355 86,488.00 62,500.00 0.00 62,500.00 (27.73)%
Maint. - Radio/Phones 5360 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00%
Maint. - Tires & Tubes 5365 16,100.00 14,800.00 0.00 14,800.00 (8.07)%
Maint. - Vehicle 5370 21,000.00 25,250.00 0.00 25,250.00 20.23%
Medical Supplies 5375 766.00 700.00 0.00 700.00 (8.61)%
Memberships/Subscriptions 5380 9,445.00 10,410.00 0.00 10,410.00 10.21%
Mileage Reimbursement 5385 1,028.00 1,250.00 0.00 1,250.00 21.59%
Miscellaneous 5395 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00%
Office Supplies/Expense 5400 10,848.00 10,700.00 0.00 10,700.00 (1.36)%
Pool Chemicals 5405 21,500.00 19,995.00 0.00 19,995.00 (7.00)%
Postage 5410 4,400.00 8,600.00 0.00 8,600.00 95.45%
Printing 5415 614.00 1,100.00 0.00 1,100.00 79.15%
Professional Services 5420 161,432.00 124,304.00 16,683.00 140,987.00 (22.99)%
Program Supplies 5421 25,242.00 38,779.00 0.00 38,779.00 53.62%
Publications & Legal Notices 5425 595.00 600.00 0.00 600.00 0.84%
Radios 5430 2,500.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 20.00%
Refund-Activity Pass 5431 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Rent/Lease - Bldgs, Fields, etc. 5435 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Rent/Lease - Equipment 5440 9,820.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 (79.63)%
Staff Development 5455 28,050.00 23,700.00 0.00 23,700.00 (15.50)%
Special Events 5465 4,238.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Phones/internet 5470 44,589.00 48,000.00 0.00 48,000.00 7.64%
Utilities - Water 5490 42,500.00 44,000.00 0.00 44,000.00 3.52%
Utilities - Electric/Gas 5492 168,350.00 196,000.00 0.00 196,000.00 16.42%
Vandalism 5500 2,000.00 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 (40.00)%
Cal Fire In Kind Purchases 5501 13,500.00 12,400.00 0.00 12,400.00 (8.14)%
Capital Equipment Expense 5625 451,117.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (100.00)%
Transer Out 7000 0.00 59,053.00 0.00 59,053.00 0.00%

Total Expenditures 7,004,011.00 6,697,417.00 (267.00) 6,697,150.00 (4.38)%

Net Revenue Over Expenditures (182,491.00) 3,043.00 0.00 3,043.00 (101.66)%

Date: 7/31/20 04:33:29 PM Page: 3

Attachment 9C



  Attachment 9D 
RESOLUTION No. 2020-17 

of the Board of Directors  
of the Cameron Park Community Services District 

August 19, 2020 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 BUDGET 

 
WHEREAS, a preliminary Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget was adopted by this Board 

on June 17, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the Budget & Administration Committee reviewed the proposed 
Final Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget; and 

WHEREAS, proper notice was published accordance with the law, that said 
proposed Final Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget was open for inspection and that a public 
hearing was be held on August 19, 2020, and interested taxpayers were given the 
opportunity to voice their opinions on the proposed Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget has a beginning budgeted fund 
balance of $3,367,038 and an ending balance of $3,370,081; and   

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget is due to the County of El Dorado by 
September 1, 2020;  

NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the District adopts Attachment 9C, 
attached to this resolution and made part therein as the Cameron Park Community 
Services Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Cameron Park 
Community Services District at a regularly scheduled meeting held on the 19th day of 
August 2020 by the following vote of said Board: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Director Monique Scobey, President  Jill Ritzman, General Manager 
Board of Directors     Secretary to the Board 



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 19, 2020 
  
FROM: Jill Ritzman, General Manager 
     
AGENDA ITEM #10:  PUBLIC HEARING - EL DORADO DISPOSAL PROPOSED 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT AND RATE ADJUSTMENT 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  APPROVE RESOLUTION 2020-18 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff is recommending that the Board of Directors approve:  

• Amendment to the Agreement between El Dorado Disposal/Waste Connections 
(EDD) and Cameron Park Community Services District (District); and  

• Annual Rate Adjustment. 
 

BUDGET AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
The Budget and Administration Committee met four times to discuss El Dorado 
Disposal’s proposal for rate adjustments and contract amendment.  Committee members 
reviewed and discussed current and historical rates, contract and contract amendments, 
diversion reports, franchise fees paid to the District, rate comparisons with other 
agencies, inventory of trucks assigned to Cameron Park, and diversion reports.  After 
much consideration, the Committee supports the proposed contract amendment and rate 
adjustment and forwards to the Board of Directors for consideration.   
 

BACKGROUND 
The District and EDD executed an agreement for services in 2008.  The District Board of 
Directors approved two Amendments, in 2010 and 2012.  During this timeframe, the 
County conducted a study to determine whether or not it was in the best interests of the 
County to continue contracting with EDD or to competitively bid the franchise 
agreement.  The independent study determined that continuing waste collection services 
with EDD was in the best interest of the County and other jurisdictions.  The current 
agreement’s term ends on February 28, 2023.  



El Dorado Disposal Contract Amendment August 19, 2020 Page 2 of 5 
and Rate Adjustment 

DISCUSSION 
The following outlines items to be included in the proposed Contract Amendment 
(Attachment 10A) and a proposed rate adjustment (Attachment 10B). 
 
Proposed Contract Amendment 
The following are proposed changes outlined in the Contract Amendment (Attachment 
10A): 
 

• New Cameron Park Recycling Facility/Buy-Back Center 
The most exciting news for Cameron Park residents is the new Recycling Collection 
Facility/Buy-Back Center located on the north side of Durock Road, near Robin Lane, to 
replace the existing location behind Bel Air.  The capital investment is approximately 
$135,000, and includes perimeter fencing to prevent illegal dumping and vandalism.  
Operating costs will include lease payments to the landowner, utilities, and one or two 
full-time employees.  The new location will be safe, secure, and clean.  The CA 
redemption program continues and expanded services include a year-round green waste 
drop-off to support the District’s efforts for a fire safe community.  
 

• Christmas Tree Program 
For many years, and as a fundraiser for local Boy Scout troops, Boy Scout volunteers have 
collected Christmas Trees to raise donations, and placed the trees at Cameron Park Lake 
for disposal by the District.  In addition to trees collected by Boy Scouts, residents bring 
their Christmas Trees and add to the pile.  Disposing of trees is costly and burdensome 
for District staff, and a significant fire hazard if the hundreds of trees were not removed 
in a timely fashion. In 2019, EDD provided additional dumpsters to collect the trees and 
provided a means for efficient, safe removal.  This practice will continue under the new 
Contract Amendment.  
 

• Curbside Green Waste Voucher Program 
The existing twice per year, scheduled curbside green waste pick up events will be 
replaced with a voucher system.  Each resident receives two green waste vouchers, one 
for Spring and one for Fall, to be scheduled at their convenience.  Green waste paper 
sacks (to be purchased by residents at local hardware stores) will replace plastic bags, 
which are not compostable and no longer permitted.   Up to thirty compostable lawn/leaf 
bags will be allowed at each pick-up. 
 



El Dorado Disposal Contract Amendment August 19, 2020 Page 3 of 5 
and Rate Adjustment 

• Material Recovery Facility (MRF) Expansion and Rebuild 
The MRF is undergoing renovations to: improve and expand customer services; increase 
safety to customers and employees; provide better control for noise, odor and litter; and 
ease on-site congestion.  The renovated site consolidates material in an economically 
feasible way, contributes to diversion, and includes a community education center.  The 
site improvements are critically needed for the next 20-40 years. All curbside material 
flows through the MRF, which is the only facility of its kind on the Western Slope. 
 

• Continued District Services and Support 
EDD will continue their $14,500 donation to Summer Spectacular or another event 
designated by the District, and continue to support two community clean-up events in 
cooperation with the District (as allowable considering the pandemic).  A voucher for one 
annual curbside bulky/trash pick-up is included in current services.   
 

• Ten year extension to 2033 
Staff and Committee is recommending that the agreement with EDD be extended by ten 
years, to June 2033.  The extension provides EDD an opportunity to amortize capital 
investments at both the MRF and the new Cameron Park Recycle Center. 
 
Annual Rate Adjustment 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Rate Adjustment beginning September 1, 
2020 (Attachment 10B).  Section 18 – Compensation (page 22) of the Agreement 
(Attachment 10C) outlines the timeline, procedure, and triggers for rate adjustments.  
Rates may be adjusted for Inflation/Deflation, Fuel Surcharge, and Extraordinary 
Circumstances, as long as performance standards have been met.  EDD met and exceeded 
all customer service goals. 
 

• Recycling  
Recycle markets continue to decline, driving up the cost of addressing recyclable 
materials.  In 2015, EDD received revenues of $48.54/ton; EDD now pays $98.02/ton to 
avoid landfilling the material – a swing of almost $150.  In years past, the rates have been 
allocated more heavily to businesses than to residents.  To support businesses during the 
pandemic, the Committee is recommending that recycle rates be spread evening between 
businesses and residents.  To enhance recycling of the correct materials and assist in 
lowering future recycling costs, EDD is changing performance standards to include 



El Dorado Disposal Contract Amendment August 19, 2020 Page 4 of 5 
and Rate Adjustment 

education and outreach activities.  A new Residential Oops Cart Tagging Program 
provides immediate, direct feedback to residents.  
 

• Material Recovery Facility (MRF) 
Per County’s request, EDD provided a third-party review and verification of the 
proposed MRF rate increase, and proposed fees were affirmed through the attached 
Commodity Revenue Analysis (Attachment 10D). 
 

The proposed 2020 rate adjustments for the MRF and recycling is the same for El Dorado 
County, El Dorado Hills Community Services District, and Cameron Park Community 
Services District. 
 
El Dorado County and El Dorado Disposal Proposed Agreement & Rate Changes 
El Dorado County Department of Environmental Management is recommending the 
Board of Supervisors consider increasing a current surcharge on all landfilled solid waste, 
paid by El Dorado Disposal to the County, to fund solid waste programs administered 
by the County on behalf of all County residents.  A County Board of Supervisors decision 
may trigger an additional rate adjustment for Cameron Park residents, to be considered 
in the future by the District Board of Directors.  The Board of Supervisors Public Hearing 
is scheduled for August 25, 2020. 
 

In 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved the County-wide Solid Waste Management 
Plan (Plan). The Plan was developed to provide a focused, comprehensive, strategic 
approach to solid waste management to meet State mandates.  A goal of achieving 75% 
diversion of solid waste from landfilling by the year 2020 is contained in the Plan.  
 

The County responsibilities for solid waste management, per State mandate and required 
by the Board-approved Plan, are listed below.  These tasks are completed by the County 
on behalf of all County residents, including Cameron Park.   

o Regulatory compliance per AB 939, AB 341, AB 1826, SB 1383, and reporting to 
the State for all jurisdictions in the County; 

o Solid waste diversion programs; 

o County-wide litter program and illegal dumping abatement; 

o Union Mine Landfill operations, maintenance and monitoring. 



El Dorado Disposal Contract Amendment August 19, 2020 Page 5 of 5 
and Rate Adjustment 

In 1962, El Dorado County began operations of the Union Mine Landfill. The facility 
ceased operating as a public disposal site in 1996.  The County will continue to have 
ongoing responsibilities for monitoring and maintaining the closed landfill for the next 
30 years.   
 
CONCLUSION 
Staff is recommending approval of the proposed Contract Amendment and Rate 
Adjustment, which does not include a rate change related to a pending El Dorado County Board 
of Supervisors’ decision.  Due to EDD’s capital investment into the Cameron Park Recycle 
Facility/Buy-Back Center, an important addition to the community, staff, and the 
Committee is recommending approval in August for new rates to begin September 1, 
2020.  EDD is a great community partner with the District, supporting community events 
and fundraising activities.  Many residents have testified to EDD’s great customer service.   
 
Attachments: 
10A – Draft Contract Amendment 
10B – Proposed Rate Adjustment  
10C – 2008 Agreement with 2010 and 2012 Amendments 
10D – EDD Commodity Revenue Analysis Regarding MRF 
10E – Monthly Performance Standards (April-July 2020) 
10F – Resolution 2020-18 



DRAFT July 2020                                            Attachment 10A 
 

{00090532.DOC.3} THIRD AMENDMENT TO SOLID WASTE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 1 
 

THIRD AMENDMENT 
TO 

SOLID WASTE SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
AND 

WASTE CONNECTIONS OF CALIFORNIA, INC., doing business as EL DORADO 
DISPOSAL SERVICES 

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO SOLID WASTE SERVICES AGREEMENT (this 
“Amendment”) between the CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT (the 
“District”) and WASTE CONNECTIONS OF CALIFORNIA, INC., a California corporation, 
doing business as EL DORADO DISPOSAL SERVICES (“Contractor”), is entered as of August 
__, 2020, in connection with the collection, transportation and disposal of Solid Waste.  
Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings ascribed to 
them in the Agreement (as defined below). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor entered into that certain Solid Waste Services 
Agreement in 2008 (the “Original Agreement”) to provide for mandatory solid waste collection 
in the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor entered into that certain First Amendment to 
Solid Waste Services Agreement in 2010 and 2012 (the “First Amendment” and “Second 
Amendment”, together with the Original Agreement, the “Agreement”) to provide for mandatory 
solid waste collection in the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor wish to amend the Agreement in certain respects 
to, among other things, clarify the types of services to be provided pursuant to the Agreement 
and to extend the term of the Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE 
RECEIPT AND SUFFICIENCY OF WHICH ARE HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED, THE 
PARTIES AGREE TO AMEND THE AGREEMENT, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Addition of New Section 3.H.  A new Section 3.H is hereby added to the 
Agreement and shall read in its entirety as follows: 

“H. Ordinances to Enforce Agreement.  The District shall use its best 
efforts to adopt new, or amend existing, ordinances, rules or regulations 
that have the effect of requiring third parties, including, without limitation, 
residents and customers, to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, 
including, without limitation, those provisions in the Agreement:  (i) 
dictating the manner in which residents and customers are to place Solid 
Waste, Green Waste and Recyclable Materials out for collection; and (ii) 
granting exclusive service rights to Contractor.” 



Attachment 10A 

{00090532.DOC.3} THIRD AMENDMENT TO SOLID WASTE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 2 
 

2. Amendment to Section 6.J.  Section 6.J of the Agreement is hereby amended 
and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 

“[Intentionally deleted.]” 

3. Amendment to Section 6.K.  Section 6.K of the Agreement is hereby amended 
and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 

“K. Regular Collection of Green Waste.  Contractor shall collect Green 
Waste from 96-gallon Contractor-provided containers, as placed for 
collection by the customer.  Standard collection service shall be automated 
collection from the curb, unless another method is approved by the 
District; provided, however, that the District’s approval will not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.  Any excess Green Waste 
that does not fit within (i) the closed lid of the authorized Green Waste 
container(s), and (ii) any combination of two (2):  thirty (30)-gallon 
compostable paper lawn/leaf bags and/or bundles of Green Waste 
measuring not greater than three (3) feet x three (3) feet x eighteen (18) 
inches, shall be deemed excess material and shall be subject to the excess 
charges as described and limited by Exhibit “B”.  Residents may not use 
plastic bags Green Waste placed in Green Waste containers or for excess 
Green Waste set out for collection pursuant to this Section 6.K.  Residents 
of the District may request one (1) additional 96-gallon Contractor-
provided container for excess Green Waste, and Contractor shall provide 
such additional container at the charge set forth in Exhibit “B”.” 

4. Amendment to Section 6.L.  Section 6.L of the Agreement is hereby amended 
and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 

“L. Free Drop-Off Locations.  In addition to the regular collection 
service provided for in Section 6.K and the periodic Green Waste clean-up 
days provided for in Section 6.M, residents of the District may also 
dispose of any excess Green Waste, free of charge, in the appropriate 
container(s) placed at Contractor’s new recycling center to be located at a 
location to be determined by Contractor (the “Buy-Back Center”); 
provided, however, the parties agree and acknowledge that the California 
Department of Conservation (or any other applicable state, federal or local 
agency or department) may, through the adoption of rules, regulations or 
otherwise, limit how and when Contractor may operate such locations, and 
the parties hereby agree to abide by any and all of such limitations.” 

5. Amendment to Section 6.M.  Section 6.M of the Agreement is hereby amended 
and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 

“M. Green Waste Clean-Up Days.  Two (2) times per year throughout 
the Term, Contractor shall provide, in addition to regularly scheduled 
service, curbside collection of Green Waste pursuant to guidelines 



Attachment 10A 

{00090532.DOC.3} THIRD AMENDMENT TO SOLID WASTE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 3 
 

established by Contractor and approved by the District, for the disposal of 
Green Waste by Single-Family Units and Multi-Family Units in addition 
to each resident’s normal collection service (each a “GW Clean-Up Day”).  
The dates for each GW Clean-Up Day shall be proposed by Contractor 
and approved by the District.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
Section 6.K, Contractor may utilize manually loaded rear-end loader 
trucks in connection with the GW Clean-Up Days provided for in this 
Section 6.M.  For each GW Clean –Up Day, each resident shall be limited 
to a maximum of any combination of thirty (30):  thirty (30)-gallon 
compostable paper lawn/leaf bags and/or bundles of Green Waste 
measuring not greater than three (3) feet x three (3) feet x eighteen (18) 
inches.  Residents may not use plastic bags for excess Green Waste 
disposed of on a GW Clean-Up Day.” 

6. Amendment to Section 6.K.  Section 6.K of the Agreement is hereby amended 
and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 

“[Intentionally deleted.]” 

7. Amendment to Section 9.A.  The termination date in Section 9.A of the 
Agreement is hereby deleted and the following date is substituted therefor:  “June 30, 2033” 

8. Amendment to Exhibit “B”.  Exhibit “B” to the Agreement is hereby deleted in 
its entirety and replaced with Exhibit “B” attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

9. Amendment to Exhibit “C”.  Exhibit “C” to the Agreement is hereby deleted in 
its entirety and replaced with Exhibit “C” attached hereto as Exhibit “C”. 

10. Deletion of Schedule “1”.  Schedule “1” attached to the First Amendment is 
hereby deleted in its entirety. 

11. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in one or more facsimile or 
original counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and both of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

12. Ratification.  All terms and provisions of the Agreement not amended hereby, 
either expressly or by necessary implication, shall remain in full force and effect.  From and after 
the date of this Amendment, all references to the term “Agreement” in this Amendment and in 
the original Agreement shall include the terms contained in this Amendment. 

13. Conflicting Provisions.  In the event of any conflict between the original terms of 
the Agreement and this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall prevail. 

14. Authorization.  Each party executing this Amendment represents and warrants 
that it is duly authorized to cause this Amendment to be executed and delivered. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank; 
Signature Page Immediately Follows.] 



DRAFT July 2020                                            Attachment 10A 
 

{00090532.DOC.3} THIRD AMENDMENT TO SOLID WASTE SERVICES AGREEMENT: 
SIGNATURE PAGE 

S-1 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Third Amendment to Solid Waste 
Services Agreement as of the date first written above. 

 CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT 

  
 

 By:  
 Name:  
 Title: President, Board of Directors 
  
ATTEST: 
Clerk of the Board of Directors 

 

 
 

 

By:   
 
 

 

 WASTE CONNECTIONS OF CALIFORNIA, INC., 
d/b/a EL DORADO DISPOSAL SERVICES 

  
 

 By:  
 Name: Worthing F.  Jackman 
 Title: President and Chief Executive Officer 
 



DRAFT July 2020                                            Attachment 10A 
 

{00090532.DOC.3} THIRD AMENDMENT TO SOLID WASTE SERVICES 
AGREEMENT – EXHIBIT “B” 

B-1 

 

Exhibit “B” 
To Solid Waste Services Agreement dated February 21, 2008, between 

Cameron Park Community Services District 
and 

Waste Connections of California, Inc.  d/b/a El Dorado Disposal services 

CONTRACTOR RATES 

[To be attached.] 



DRAFT July 2020                                            Attachment 10A 
 

{00090532.DOC.3} THIRD AMENDMENT TO SOLID WASTE SERVICES 
AGREEMENT – EXHIBIT “C” 

C-1 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 
To Solid Waste Services Agreement dated February 21, 2008, between 

Cameron Park Community Services District 
and 

Waste Connections of California, Inc.  d/b/a El Dorado Disposal services 

PERFORMANCE CRITERIA 

Contractor will be awarded points in accordance with the performance criteria listed below.  A 
total of 105 points are available to Contractor.  Each point is equal to 1% of any CPI rate 
increase request.  In order to receive the full CPI rate increase annually, Contractor must be 
awarded a minimum of 100 points.  In the event that Contractor is awarded less than 100 points 
the CPI will be reduced on a 1 point to 1% basis.  For example, if Contractor requests a 3% CPI 
increase, but was only awarded 95 total points, the CPI increase request would be reduced by 
0.15% (5% of 3% = 0.15%), resulting in Contractor being granted a 2.85% rate increase instead 
of the 3% requested.  A total of 105 points have been offered to Contractor to serve as a cushion 
in the event that Contractor is unable to meet all performance criteria.  In no event shall 
Contractor be awarded more than the CPI requested increase.  For example, if Contractor 
requests a 3% CPI increase and was awarded 105 points, Contractor would only be granted the 
3% rate increase. 

Residential Outreach: 

1. Contractor shall include three (3) billing inserts per year designed to educate 
residential customers about:  (i) “closing their lids” on their carts; (ii) cart placement guidelines; 
(iii) the Buy-Back Center; (iv) the Household Hazardous Waste Program; and (v) any other 
program-specific information as discussed and agreed upon between the District and Contractor.  
All literature shall be made available for prior review by the District. 

2. Contractor shall provide each new District resident with a “New Resident 
Packet”, which shall include information on: (i) “closing their lids” on their carts; (ii) cart 
placement guidelines; (iii) the Buy-Back Center; (iv) the Household Hazardous Waste Program; 
(v) the two annual cleanups; (vi) Contractor’s website; (vii) Vouchers; (viii) and any other 
program-specific information as discussed and agreed upon between the District and Contractor.  
All literature shall be made available for prior review by the District. 

3. Provide six (6) bi-monthly updates for the District’s solid waste and recycling 
webpage to be completed by a reasonable date agreed upon by the District and Contractor. 

4. Contractor shall work with residents and provide removal of items which are not 
allowed to be placed in bins during weekly pickup.  For example:  Batteries, bulky items and oil.  
A Bulky item includes a large item equivalent to one regular couch or appliance, one mattress 
and box spring set. 

Each subsection listed above shall be awarded five (5) points per operating year on a pass or fail 
basis, in no event shall partial points or the total points awarded per subsection per year be in 
excess of five (5) points. 



Attachment 10A 

{00090532.DOC.3} THIRD AMENDMENT TO SOLID WASTE SERVICES 
AGREEMENT – EXHIBIT “C” 

C-2 

 

Commercial Outreach: 

1. Contractor agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to meet, in person, with 
at least four (4) commercial businesses each quarter to discuss:  (i) their waste and recycling 
needs; (ii) assisting them in reducing their trash; and (iii) increasing their recycling, address 
customers potentially meeting the organic recycling requirement; and assisting them with their 
food/organic material recycling needs. 

2. Each year during the term, Contractor shall provide at least three (3) printed 
outreach material to commercial businesses regarding: (i) recycling; (ii) emphasizing potential 
cost-saving opportunities; and (iii) providing waste audits as requested at least three audits.  All 
literature shall be subject to prior review by the District. 

3. Contractor shall include three (3) billing inserts per year educating commercial 
customers about:  (i) approved waste streams; (ii) recycling opportunities; (iii) bin placement; 
(iv) extra charges for “overage”; and (v) any other information as discussed and agreed upon 
between the District and Contractor.  All literature shall be made available for prior review by 
the District. 

The three (3) subsections listed above shall be awarded a combined total of five (5) points per 
operating year on a pass or fail basis, in no event shall partial points or the total points awarded 
for all sections combined per year be in excess of five (5) points. 

Community Event Outreach: 

Contractor shall attend a minimum of four (4) Community Events.  Contractor will provide 
information and outreach concerning refuse/waste activities, recycling education, rate or pick-up 
schedule changes, technological improvements related to waste/refuse management, incentive 
programs, and other related information.  A typical way of meeting the performance expectation 
is to attend and setup an information station (e.g., booth) with visual displays, handouts such as 
brochures and leaflets, and staffed appropriately to communicate with residents. 

Five (5) points per event shall be awarded on a pass or fail basis, in no event shall partial points 
per event be awarded.  The total points awarded per year for this section may not be in excess of 
forty (40) points. 

Call Answer Rate: 

Contractor shall answer customer calls within an average of one hundred eighty (180) Thirds, as 
measured by Contractor’s phone system and reported to the District.  Contractor reporting shall 
include total number of calls, average hold time and average call length from all District 
residents.  Call times shall be measured and averaged quarterly. 

Five (5) points per quarter shall be awarded on a pass or fail basis; in no event shall partial points 
be awarded per quarter or total points awarded per year be in excess of twenty (20). 



Attachment 10A 

{00090532.DOC.3} THIRD AMENDMENT TO SOLID WASTE SERVICES 
AGREEMENT – EXHIBIT “C” 

C-3 

 

Customer and Litter Complaint Resolution: 

Contractor shall on average correct 99.5% of valid customer complaints (including missed pick-
up and litter complaints) per quarter for each Operating Year preceding the effective date of the 
price CPI adjustment within the time specified in Section 18.C of the Agreement, but only in so 
far as such complaints are capable of being corrected within such time period.  Customer 
Complaint corrections shall be measured and averaged quarterly. 

Five (5) points per quarter shall be awarded on a pass or fail basis; in no event shall partial points 
be awarded per quarter or total points awarded per year be in excess of twenty (20). 

For purposes of this performance measure, the term “valid customer complaint” shall mean 
complaints where:  (a) a customer contacts Contractor with a complaint; (b) Contractor’s 
customer service representative cannot satisfy/handle the complaint to the customer’s 
satisfaction; (c) the call is escalated to the attention of Contractor’s Office Manager or District 
Manager; and (d) Contractor is actually determined to be at fault with regard to such complaint; 
provided, however, that the term “valid customer complaint” shall exclude complaints about:  (i) 
the rates charged by Contractor; and (ii) the pick-up day assigned by Contractor to the 
complaining customer. 

Reporting: 

All reports required to be filed by Contractor with the District pursuant to Section 16 of the 
Agreement shall be timely filed within the periods specified in that Section.  In the event that 
Contractor does not submit reports to the District, no points for any criteria listed above will be 
awarded until all reports are submitted satisfactorily to the District. 

Franchise Area Accounting: 

Annual audit of jurisdictional customers shall be completed collaboratively with District staff 
prior to 120 days of consideration of a rate increase. 



Attachment 10B

CAMERON PARK CSD

2020 PRICE INCREASE - COMMON MONTHLY RATES

Current Rate add CPI Adjust add Recycle Adjust Total Change
35G CAN WEEKLY 26.40$                27.26$                27.58$                         28.43$                    2.04$                       
35G CAN WEEKLY SR 19.17$                19.80$                20.12$                         20.74$                    1.57$                       
64G CAN WEEKLY 29.52$                30.48$                30.80$                         31.76$                    2.24$                       
96G CAN WEEKLY 37.36$                38.58$                38.90$                         40.11$                    2.75$                       
3yd FEL 1x/wk 298.87$              308.65$              311.93$                      321.59$                  22.71$                    
20yd RO 513.81$              530.61$              536.27$                      552.86$                  39.05$                    

add MRF Rebuild 
New Proposed 

Rate



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



Attachment 10C



 

Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global 

400 Capitol Mall, Suite 1400 
Sacramento, California  95814-4434 
Tel 916.441.1000 
Fax 916.441.1110 
www.crowe.com

June 17, 2020 

Ms. Sue VanDelinder 
Division Vice President 
El Dorado Disposal Service 
580 Truck Street 
Placerville, CA 95667 

Transmitted via email 

Subject: El Dorado Disposal Service Commodity Revenues and 
Transfer Station/Materials Recovery Facility Capital Cost Analysis 

Crowe LLP (Crowe) has completed its analysis of El Dorado Disposal Service’s (EDDS’s) commodity 
revenues during rate years 2019 and 2020 and of increases in the transfer station/Materials Recovery 
Facility (MRF) capital cost estimate. Under the County’s direction, EDDS contracted with Crowe to 
perform an analysis of its commodity revenues and transfer station/MRF capital costs to determine 
impacts of unforeseen changes and to identify potential adjustments to current rates, if warranted. This 
letter report documents the results of our analysis, and is organized as follows: 

1. Purpose of Analysis
2. Summary of Analysis
3. Background of Analysis
4. Scope of Analysis
5. Rate Setting Adjustments
6. Results of Analysis.

1. Purpose of Analysis
The purpose of this El Dorado Disposal Service Commodity Revenues and Transfer Station/Materials 
Recovery Facility Analysis (Analysis) is to determine the impact of changes in the recycling marketplace 
on EDDS’s County rates and the impact of new transfer station/MRF cost estimates on current transfer 
station/MRF and EDDS County rates. The results of our analysis will assist the County to determine 
whether a rate increase is warranted for EDDS at this time to account for unforeseen circumstances in the 
recycling marketplace and increased transfer station/MRF construction capital costs. We conducted this 
Analysis in accordance with the County’s Solid Waste Rate Setting Policies and Procedures Manual for 
Unincorporated Areas (Manual). This Manual was developed and incorporated into the County’s franchise 
agreement with EDDS in October 2014. 

The information in this Analysis is based on estimates, assumptions, and other data developed by Crowe 
from information provided by EDDS, EDDS’s contracted vendors, knowledge of and participation in other 
studies, and other sources deemed to be reliable. In the course of preparing this Analysis, we have not 
conducted an audit, review, or compilation of any financial or supplemental data used in the 
accompanying Analysis. We have made certain projections which may vary from actual results because 
events and circumstances frequently do not occur as expected and such variances may be material. We 
have no responsibility to update this Analysis for events or circumstances occurring after the date above. 

Our procedures and work product are intended for the benefit and use of EDDS. This engagement was 
not planned or conducted in contemplation of reliance by any other party or with respect to any specific 

Attachment 10D



Ms. Sue VanDelinder 
June 17, 2020  Page 2 

transaction and is not intended to benefit or influence any other party. Therefore, items of possible 
interest to a third party may not be specifically addressed or matters may exist that could be assessed 
differently by a third party. 

2. Summary of Analysis
The analysis of EDDS’s tonnage and recycling sales data for 2019, and actual and year-to-date 2020, 
supports that EDDS’ request to make up for a $321,371 revenue shortfall is reasonable at this time. 
EDDS’s proposed rate increase of $0.19 per customer, per month, for residential customers, and a 1.59 
percent increase in commercial rates for El Dorado County will cover this shortfall. Should recycled 
markets dramatically improve between now and the time of the next base year review, the County should 
calculate a “true up” to determine differences between this projected recycled commodity revenue 
shortfall and what actual occurred and consider providing this as a credit back to County ratepayers. 

The analysis of transfer station/MRF capital cost estimates spanning 2014 to 2020, and the current facility 
plans/configuration, supports that the transfer station/MRF facility construction costs are expected to 
exceed the high end of Waste Connections original 2014 commitment, of $12M, by $13.6M at this time 
(see rightmost column in Table 1).1 Waste Connections has proposed recovery of a $12M increase in 
transfer station/MRF costs. This increase in capital cost is considered significantly higher than the 2014 
maximum estimate and therefore, consistent with the 4th Amendment language, can be considered by the 
Board.  

We verified that Waste Connections’ proposed rate changes to hauling rates and gate rates will cover this 
$12M revenue requirement. The proposed 3.23 percent rate increase to County residential and 
commercial customers is estimated to cover approximately 61 percent of this revenue requirement. We 
verified that this increase was accurately calculated. 

Waste Connections requested various changes to gate rates (see Table 2) to make up the remaining 39 
percent of the revenue requirement. We reviewed the proposed gate rate changes as presented and 
these gate rate increases appear sufficient to cover the remaining 39 percent of the revenue requirement 
based on assumptions for how customers respond to the proposed gate rate changes. However, we 
conclude that the proposed gate rate changes for Mixed Loose Waste, Clean Yard Waste, and Minimum 
Load Fees as presented are too significant to implement in a one-year period and would cause undue 
hardship on those customers currently using these services at the transfer station/MRF. To mitigate rate 
impacts, gate rate increases for these three services should be phased in over at least a 3-year period. 
We also suggest that the County and Waste Connections consider monitoring the total spend of this 
facility construction and “true up” differences upon completion. 

3. Background of Analysis
EDDS, under parent company Waste Connections of California, provides solid waste collection services 
to the County’s West Slope customers in Area A, B, and C. In discussions with the County on May 1, 
2020, EDDS requested to initiate an additional rate adjustment citing continued increases in the costs to 
dispose of commingled recyclables as well as higher than expected costs of the transfer station/MRF 
renovation project at 4100 Throwita Way. EDDS’s request to initiate an additional rate adjustment was 
based on the “Unforeseen Circumstances,” clause of the Solid Waste Rate Setting Policies and 
Procedures Manual (Rate Manual), which is incorporated into the EDDS Franchise Agreement with the 
County, which specifies the following: 

1 Note: Waste Connections is requesting recovery of $12M which is $1.6M below the current difference of $13.6M (based on a 
$25.7M total cost estimate). Note that if $5M of additional planned costs are included, the current total cost estimate is over $30M. 
These additional costs are in the areas of: 1) final additional design items ($874k); 2) planning, permitting and environmental review 
costs ($1.3M), 3) improvements to the Wetsel Oviatt site for interim offsite greenwaste and C&D processing (under temporary lease) 
($1.4M), and 4) new MRF equipment/land purchase costs ($834k). Waste Connections has indicated it plans to seek opportunities 
for cost reductions/savings throughout the remaining construction period. The total current project estimate is $30.5M and Waste 
Connections will be looking at design alternatives for the C&D building so that the project value is no more than $25.6M. 

Attachment 10D



Ms. Sue VanDelinder 
June 17, 2020  Page 3 

“The County should consider a proposed revision in a franchise hauler’s rates whenever the 
franchise hauler can establish to the satisfaction of the County that Unforeseen 
Circumstances have arisen that have or will materially affect the franchise hauler’s revenues 
of costs under this Manual.” 

Additionally, the 4th Amendment of the Franchise Agreement between the County and EDDS specifies the 
following as it relates to seeking rate increases related to MRF improvements where costs significantly 
exceed the original $12M estimate (refer to bold text): 

At no time over the Franchise term will Contractor be allowed to request, and the Board will 
not approve, an increase in refuse Collection rates or Transfer Station / MRF rates to 
compensate Contractor for any of the costs of the new Transfer Station / MRF 
improvements at 4100 Throwita Way based on Contractor's original 2014 maximum project 
estimate of twelve million dollars [$12,000,000.00]. An increase in refuse Collection rates 
or Transfer Station / MRF rates to compensate Contractor for any estimated costs of 
the new Transfer Station / MRF improvements that are in excess of the 2014 maximum 
project estimate may only be requested and considered by the Board if the estimated 
costs significantly exceed Contractor's original 2014 maximum estimate. 

The County requested that an independent financial body evaluate whether an additional rate 
increase is warranted based on justifiable and supportable analyses. EDDS selected Crowe to 
perform an analysis of its commodity revenues to determine impacts of unforeseen changes on 
recycled material sales revenues and the transfer station/MRF renovation costs, and to identify 
potential adjustments to current rates. The County will determine whether a rate increase is 
warranted based on the results of this analysis.   

The Rate Manual2 guides County rate setting. Rate setting has generally followed an approximately three-
year cycle with the prior base year rate analysis conducted for rate year 2018. The next base year rate 
analysis is anticipated to be conducted for rate year 2021. Recently approved rate changes are as follows: 

• 2015 – 1.96 percent rate increase – base year
• 2016 – 1.75 percent rate increase – interim year
• 2017 – 1.51 percent rate increase – interim year
• 2018 – 5.02 percent rate increase – base year
• 2019 – 6.00 percent rate increase – interim year
• 2019 – 2.86 percent rate increase – unforeseen circumstances.3

4. Scope of Analysis
Our scope of services included the following three (3) tasks: 

1. Obtain and Evaluate Financial Data
2. Assess Potential Impacts of Changes on Rates
3. Prepare Draft and Final Letter Reports.

For this analysis, we performed the following tasks: 

1. Analyze actual and projected County recycled materials tonnages, by material type
2. Analyze actual and projected County recycled material processing costs (including transportation)
3. Analyze actual and projected revenues received for County recycled materials

2 The County allows for EDDS to submit an interim year rate application in each of the “interim” two (2) years between “base” 
years, should EDDS want to request an increase in rates. The scope and content of the Interim Year Rate Application is more 
limited than a base year request, and interim year rate adjustments are subject to a “floor” and a “cap” of one (1) and six (6) 
percent.  

3    Included a 2.86 percent rate increase for unforeseen recycled commodity sales reductions between 2018 and 2019. 

Attachment 10D



Ms. Sue VanDelinder 
June 17, 2020  Page 4 

4. Determine impacts of unforeseen changes on actual and projected transfer station/MRF rebuild
costs

5. Identify potential adjustments to current County rates and transfer station/MRF gate rates, if
applicable

6. Determine the impact of the adjustments on the County rate structure, if applicable.

EDDS entered into contract with Crowe on May 8, 2020 to provide these services. We met with EDDS 
and the MRF facility on May 11, 2020. On that same day we submitted a data request to EDDS. We 
made subsequent inquiries regarding data provided throughout the month of May 2020.  

5. Rate Setting Adjustments
a. Recycled Commodity Revenues and Costs
In this section, we identify changes in EDDS’s 2019 actual and 2020 projected commodity revenues, 
which informed potential adjustments to County rates. The company requested a $0.19 per home 
increase in residential collection rates and a 1.59 percent increase in commercial revenues to make up 
for the current declines in commodity revenues. 

In response to our data requests, EDDS provided the following items: 

• Comingled outbound commodity tonnages for Rate Year 2019 and year to date 2020, by month
(system generated data)

• Comingled processing statements from Cal-Waste Recovery Systems (Cal Waste) for Rate Years
2019 and year-to-date 2020 (through April 2020), by month

• Transportation cost detail from sampled Tiger Lines, LLC invoices for Rate Year 2019 and year-
to-date 2020 (through April 2020), by month

• EDDS 2020 customer counts.

Decreases in commingled commodity revenues between 2018 and 2019 (actual), and between 2019 and 
2020 (projected) are largely due to the combination of continued declines in commodity prices received 
and increases in processing costs. We noted an 18 percent reduction in the actual credit per ton received 
from calendar year 2019 to year-to-date 2020, and a 10 percent increase in the per ton processing fees 
paid from $135 per ton in December 2019 to $148.55 per ton in January 2019.4  

Conclusion: EDDS requested the above adjustments to residential and commercial rates to cover a 
current projected net shortfall of $321,371. Our analysis, based on the tonnage and recycling sales data 
we reviewed for 2019 actual and year-to-date 2020, supports that EDDS’ request to make up for this 
$321,371 revenue shortfall is reasonable at this time. Should recycled markets dramatically improve 
between now and the time of the next base year review, the County should calculate a “true up” to 
determine differences between this projected recycled commodity revenue shortfall and what actual 
occurred and consider providing this as a credit back to County ratepayers. 

b. Materials Recovery Facility Capital Costs
In 2014, at the time the County EDDS signed the current franchise agreement, EDDS estimated that the 
capital costs to renovate the current transfer station/MRF at 4100 Throwita Way would range from $8 to 
$12 million. As indicated in the 4th Amendment to the Franchise, EDDS provided a guarantee to County 
ratepayers that it would not increase transfer station/MRF or collection rates to compensate EDDS for 
capital costs of this planned transfer station/MRF renovation project up to $12 million. Due to change in 
circumstances, the estimated capital costs for the transfer station/MRF project are now in excess of $25.6 
million (see total in third column, Table 1). 

4 EDDS uses a third-party processor (Cal Waste) to process commingled recyclables. EDDS currently pays CalWaste to process 
commingled recyclables transported by Tiger Lines from the MRF to the CalWaste facility. These payments are determined based 
on the difference between a contracted processing fee rate and the commodity sales received under market-based conditions. 

Attachment 10D



Ms. Sue VanDelinder 
June 17, 2020  Page 5 

The 4th Amendment indicates that an increase in refuse collection rates or transfer station/MRF rates to 
compensate the contractor for any estimated costs of the new transfer station/MRF improvements that 
are in excess of the 2014 maximum project estimate may only be requested and considered by the Board 
if the estimated costs significantly exceed Contractor's original 2014 maximum estimate. The $13.6 
million increase ($25.6M-$12M) in the capital costs of the transfer station/MRF (rightmost column in Table 
1) are well in excess of the 2014 maximum project estimate.

The company is proposing to increase 3rd party (self-haul) transfer station gate rates as well as increase 
hauling rates by 3.23 percent to cover a $12M (low-end) cost overage with a moderate return on invested 
capital costs. The County requested that we review the basis for the increase in these costs. 

Crowe obtained and reviewed the following transfer station/MRF renovation project documentation: 

• Original 2014 planning level capital cost estimate
• August 13, 2014 letter from Waste Connections to the County which among other provisions identifies

EDDS’ commitment to the transfer station/MRF renovation
• 2018 capital cost estimate prepared by Unger Construction Company (90% CD), dated 9/24/18
• 2018 capital cost rough order of magnitude (ROM) budget, dated 11/2/2018
• 2020 capital cost estimate (GMP budget), dated 4/6/20
• Project-to-date spend figures.

We also conducted interviews of EDDS management and the engineering manager, and a site tour, to 
better understand the evolution/history of the transfer station/MRF facility project. Below we describe the 
details of the transfer station/MRF plans as they have evolved from 2014 to the present. In Table 1 we 
provide the transfer station/MRF cost estimates in 2014, 2018, and 2020. 

2014 
The 2014 Site Plan envisioned a new 36,000 square foot transfer/processing building on the north side of 
the lot. The design for this new building included a loadout tunnel for transfer trailer loading. The existing 
67,500 sq. ft. transfer station/MRF building was to be reconfigured as follows:  

• 2,000 sq. ft. remodeled for administration/office space.
• 14,000 sq. ft. demolished and used as a free public recycling drop off area (for white goods, metals,

tires, and an HHW area). Of this total, 12,556 sq. ft. was under a covered canopy. This area included
storage/shipping of recyclables.

• Approximately 27,000 sq. ft. of the remaining space for baling, sorting, construction and demolition
(C&D) processing, material handling, bale storage, and equipment maintenance.

In accordance with the 2014 commitment letter, Waste Connections also indicated that the new facility 
would be built according to specifications included in new storm water regulations, including configuring 
the facility such that industrial activities are under roof or within a building and storm water basin 
reconfigurations to enhance discharge control. 

At the time, the company had developed what was considered a rough order of magnitude (ROM) cost 
estimate based on a qualified consultant’s (JR Miller, a transfer station construction expert) visual and 
conceptual analysis of the facility requirements. At the time, the local construction climate was still 
recovering from the Great Recession and so the cost estimate in 2014 reflected relatively favorable 
construction pricing as contractors were eager for work. 

In 2014, the company was focused on renovating the existing facility to support the needs of the 
community with essentially the lowest potential overall cost impact. Though considered, options for new 
facility locations were limited due to the challenges with developing an acceptable site in the area and the 
overall high costs of completely new construction. An important constraint was that for the company to 
keep the facility open to serve customers on a continuous basis, the project necessitated on-site phasing 
of the renovation. 

Attachment 10D



Ms. Sue VanDelinder 
June 17, 2020  Page 6 

2018 
In 2018 the plan for the transfer station/MRF facility renovation changed. As the company proceeded to 
work on the project after 2014, there was a more than two-year delay to address soil remediation 
problems on the site.5 The company had to work closely with the State Water Board to investigate, drill, 
and test for high pH water levels on the site, ultimately locating problem areas near two water storage 
basins on the west side of the property. These efforts led to significant unforeseen site remediation costs. 

The new 2018 Site Plan (prepared by Arch Nexus Architects), was modified to include demolishing most 
of the existing transfer station/MRF building due to the significant expense of renovating an aging building 
with a low roof line.6 Additionally, remodeling the entire existing building under the 2014 plan would have 
resulted in more space for the administration office, storage and maintenance area than was necessary. 

In the 2018 Plan, rather than use of the entire transfer station/MRF building, Waste Connections 
proposed to remodel and repurpose a portion of the existing transfer station/MRF building (the 
administration area and maintenance/baling bays) using a new higher roof line. The 2018 Site Plan also 
included construction of two (2) new buildings: (1) an enclosed transfer station for the transfer of 
waste/materials not requiring processing, and (2) a recycle canopy for handling/processing greenwaste, 
construction demolition debris, and possibly co-mingled recyclables. 

The following material changes were made to the original 2014 plan: 

• Increase in the recycle/canopy size from 12,556 square feet to 22,733 square feet
• Significant increase in the cost of soil remediation (associated with lime, as described above); from

$260k to $4.3M
• Reduction in the new transfer station/MRF building size from 36,000 square feet to 25,000 square

feet (a cost savings)
• New grading/paving of the area where the existing transfer station/MRF building will be demolished

and replaced by a storage yard
• Introduction of a new dedicated recycling area in the northeast corner of the lot
• Allocation of 3,246 square feet for HHW, including 1,230 square feet for appliance storage.

In 2018 the overall cost estimate for the facility, at the 90% conceptual design stage (with the cost 
estimate prepared by Unger Construction Company on 9/24/2018), increased materially based on these 
changes. As shown in Table 1, the 2018 cost estimate was approximately $22.6M. 

2020 
By 2020, Waste Connections determined that the cost to renovate and preserve the existing transfer 
station/MRF building was far too expensive. In addition to the old building age and low roof line, the 
existing roof would need to be replaced as it did not meet current building codes.7  Rather than try to 
retain the existing building, the 2020 Site Plan envisioned construction of all new buildings. To reduce 
impacts on neighboring residence, the company also plans for the C&D Recycle Canopy to now be an 
enclosed building. 

For 2020, the following material changes were made to the 2018 plan: 

• Increase in the recycle/canopy size to 28,983 square feet
• Increase in the cost of soil remediation; $400k
• Transfer station loadout tunnel changed to flat floor (cost reduction)
• Allocation of 7,385 square feet for HHW, including 3,545 square feet for appliance storage; with a

new separate building

5 The transfer station/MRF building was constructed on a site that was originally a lime processing plan. There is lime in the 
underlying soil throughout the lot. There were instances of leachate detected off of the property. 
6 The low roof line was a remnant of the existing building which was not originally designed as a transfer station/MRF. The low roof 
line led to some instances of collection truck driver’s hitting the openings when truck lifts were left up. Transfer station doors are 
typically much higher than at the existing facility to alleviate this problem. 
7 It was determined that any modification of the facility structure necessitated complete roof replacement. The original building was 
constructed some 40 years ago.  

Attachment 10D



Ms. Sue VanDelinder 
June 17, 2020  Page 7 

• New construction and demolition (C&D) processing building with baling, bale storage, and bale
loadout capabilities

• Cost increase to demolish the entire building versus a partial demolition in 2018
• Increase in the unit costs of construction (by approximately 18%, or $1.4M).

The overall cost estimate for the facility increased based on these changes. As shown in Table 1, the 
2020 cost estimate is approximately $25.7M. Most of the design is complete apart from the C&D building 
which remains at an ROM level. Note that this estimate does not include an additional approximately $5M 
of costs in the areas of: (1) final additional design items ($874k); (2) planning, permitting and 
environmental review costs ($1.3M), (3) improvements to the Wetsel Oviatt site for interim offsite 
greenwaste and C&D processing (under temporary lease) ($1.4M), and (4) new MRF equipment/land 
purchase costs ($834k). 

In summary, the increases in capital costs for the transfer station/MRF from 2014 to 2020 are related to 
the fact that the existing building could not be cost-effectively renovated and repurposed. Primary high-
level drivers for the capital cost increase (rounded) are summarized as follows and are reflected in the 
second to last column of Table 1: 

• Increase in costs for the administration building; no longer in current building but now a separate
building on the northeast corner of the lot, $3M

• Increase in costs for the C&D recycling building; no longer in current building but now a separate
building on the southwest corner of the lot, $5M

• Increase in costs for a household hazardous waste building (was planned under existing roof, but
now a separate building on the southeast side of the lot), $2M

• Increase in costs for soil remediation (unforeseen in 2014), $4M
• Increase in overall site grading requirements (using the entire lot now when originally contemplated

renovating existing building), $3M.

In order to recover the company’s current estimate of a $12M increase in the capital costs of the new 
transfer station/MRF, Waste Connections proposes a 3.23 percent rate increase on residential and 
commercial rates as well as the transfer station gate rate changes proposed in Table 2. This would 
generate approximately $1.5M of new annual revenue per year for an approximate payback period for the 
$12M shortfall of 10 years, inclusive of a small return on this investment. 

Conclusion: EDDS requested a 3.23 percent increase to residential and commercial rates and separate 
transfer station/MRF gate rate increases to cover a projected capital cost shortfall of over $12M. Our 
analysis, based on the capital cost estimates we reviewed that spanned 2014 to 2020, and the current 
facility plans/configuration, supports that the transfer station/MRF facility costs are expected to exceed 
the high end of Waste Connections original 2014 commitment, of $12M, by $13.6M at this time (rightmost 
column of Table 1).  

The proposed 3.23 percent rate increase to residential and commercial customers is estimated to cover 
approximately 61 percent of this shortfall. We verified that the impact of this increase was accurately 
calculated. 

EDDS is requesting changes to gate rates to make up the remaining 39 percent of the $1.5M shortfall. 
We reviewed the proposed gate rate changes as presented. We conclude that the proposed gate rate 
changes for Mixed Loose Waste, Clean Yard Waste, and Minimum Load Fees as presented are too 
significant to implement in a one-year period and would cause undue hardship on those customers 
currently using these services at the transfer station/MRF. The County should consider phased 
implementation of gate rate increases for these 3 services over at least a 3-year period (i.e., 1/3 of the 
increase in each of the next 3 years from 2020 to 2022) so that the full gate rate change for these three 
services is not realized until 2022. This will provide adequate time for those customers using these three 
services to determine how they will respond to the gate rate increases; whether to shift to curbside 
collection, pay the extra cost to self-haul the material,  or via some other means (e.g., use of another 
facility). Due to the minor number of transactions, and/or the limited proposed rate change, we concluded 
that the remaining gate rate changes in Table 2 could be implemented immediately.  

Attachment 10D



Ms. Sue VanDelinder 
June 17, 2020  Page 8 

Additionally, because progression of the construction of the new facility has been delayed by Covid-19, 
the new expected completion date is likely to occur sometime in 2023. A phased gate rate increase 
implementation aligns with this expected delayed delivery date. 

Crowe reviewed unit costs, included in the detailed cost estimate, against construction cost averages. In 
general, we found that most of the significant facility unit costs fell within the expected unit cost range of 
similar construction costs. We found some areas where the unit costs were at the high end of the range of 
comparable costs (e.g., plumbing, HVAC, fence, curb, overall construction & demolition building costs (at 
ROM stage)). We understand that Waste Connections plans to make efforts to mitigate facility costs as 
much as possible going forward. We suggest that the County and Waste Connections consider 
monitoring the total spend of this facility construction and “true up” differences upon completion. 
Table 1 
Waste Connections 
2100 Throwita Way Transfer Station/Materials Recovery Facility Renovation 
Construction Cost Estimates 
(2014, 2018, and 2020) 

Cost Description 2014 2018 2020 Change 
2014-2020 

Difference 
Between 2020 

and $12M 
Commitment 

Administration Building $585 $5,836 $3,518 $2,933 
Bale Storage - 221 - 0 
Baler/Maintenance Bay 1,814 - 0 
Construction and Demolition - 2,481 5,000 5,000 
Education Center - - 61 61 
Household Hazardous Waste - 709 1,648 1,648 
Recycle Bin Area - 379 390 390 
Scale House and Scales 318 556 792 474 
Site Improvements 
(Grading/Paving/Striping, Demo) 767 2,424 4,066 3,299 

Soil Remediation (Lime) 260 4,314 4,706 4,446 
Transfer Station/MRF 6,676 2,349 3,792 (2,884) 
Utilities 182 1,473 1,689 1,507 

Total $8,789 $22,557 $25,665 $16,876 $13,665 

Table 2 
Waste Connections 
Proposed Transfer Station Gate Rate Changes 
(2020) 

Rate Description Current Proposed Change 

Mixed Loose Waste (Greater than 1/2 cubic yard) $13.16 $22.00  $ 8.84 
Clean Yard Waste/clippings/small limbs (no plastic bags) - min 1 yard $9.76  $15.00  $5.24 
Minimum Load (up to 2 cubic yard or 55-gallon drum)  $7.66  $20.00  $12.34 
Clean Wood Waste (not painted, burnt, or chemically treated)  $10.19 $15.00  $4.81 
Appliance with an additional charge applied for the removal of freon gases and 
motor(s), and any other hazardous wastes  $35.99 $36.00  $0.01 
Appliances  $13.52  $20.00  $6.48 
Dead Animals - Small (cat, dog, goats, and deer)  $25.45  $25.00   $(0.45) 
Per additional 32 gal can of household waste  $3.45  $15.00  $11.55 
Dead Animals - Large Size (Large goats, sheep, pigs)  $50.96 $50.00 $(0.96) 
Mixed Loose Waste (Greater than 1/2 cubic yard) - Unsecured  $16.45 $27.50 $11.05 
Minimum Load (up to 2 cubic yard or 55-gallon drum) - Unsecured  $9.58 $25.00  $15.42 
Clean Yard Waste/clippings/small limbs (no plastic bags) - min 1 yard - Unsecured  $12.20 $25.00  $12.80 

Attachment 10D



Ms. Sue VanDelinder 
June 17, 2020  Page 9 

* * * * *

We appreciate the contribution of EDDS management for this analysis. If you have any questions regarding 
this report, please call Erik Nylund at (415) 230-4963, or email erik.nylund@crowe.com. 

Very truly yours, 
Crowe LLP 

Attachment 10D

mailto:erik.nylund@crowe.com


Attachment 10E

Cameron ParkMonthly Performance Standards
Month April May June July
Performance Standard System of Record Result Result Result Result
Missed Pickup Route Manager 7 3 9 2
The missed pickup rate for residential customers 
shall not exceed .005 or fiver per one thousand 
customers

Call Answer Rate in Seconds NEC Phone System 64 66 64 150
Customer calls shall be answered within an average of 180 seconds
 
Customer Complaints Logged into Excel 0 1 1 0
Contractor shall on average  correct 99.95% of 
customer complaints for each operating year
Total complaints for the year 0 1 2 2

Litter Complaint 0 0 0 0
Contractor shall on average  correct 99.95% of 
customer complaints for litter attributive to 
contractor within 48 hours Logged into Excel
Litter complaints for the year 0 0 0 0

New Starts 39 33 5 49

Special removal(batteries, bulky, oil) 36 35 22 33

Reporting 100% 100% 100% 100%
All reports required to be filed by contractor within 
the specified time. Specifically refers to franchise 
fee and diversion reporting. Waste Works/Route Manager



Attachment 10E
Date Customer Name Address Complaint Resolution

4.22.2020 Lisa Mace 3176 Spanish Ravine Road

LISA CALLED IN -SHE ADVISED THAT ON 4/6/20, 
APPROX 7:30 AM- THE DRIVER BACKED ALL 
THE WAY DOWN THE ROAD AND DID NOT TAKE 
THE TURN CORRECTLY, AND HAD GONE IN THE 
DITCH, CRUMBLING PARTS OF THE ROAD 
CAUSING DAMAGE. SHE STATED THAT SHE 
HAS VIDEO OF THE TRUCK CAUSING DAMAGE.

Operations Supervisor met 
with customer and did a site 
check.

5.19.2020 SILVA, TODD & MONICA 3064 MOLINER DR

Customer called to complain about worker in the 
HHW station. Customer was not happy that they 
had to unload their waste as pre Covid-19 the 
attendant unloaded the materials.

MRF Supervisor reached out 
to customer to help educate 
on employee safety and safe 
distancing.

6.2.2020 Bob Conover 2837 OSBORNE RD

I RECEIVED A CALL FROM OUR CUSTOMER 
BOB CONOVER REGARDING HIS EXPERIENCE 
AT THE RECYCLE LOCATION LOCATED ON 
PALMER DRIVE. CUSTOMER ADVISED THAT HE 
WAS AT THIS LOCATION LAST THURSDAY / 
FRIDAY AND AGAIN TODAY - THE 
REPRESENTATIVE WAS VERY RUDE, NOT 
ALLOWING HIM TO SPLIT THE RECYCLING (HIS 
AND HIS DAUGHTERS) BOB ADVISED THAT HE 
WILL NO LONGER DO BUSINESS AT THIS 
LOCATION. BOB IS REQUESTING SUPERVISOR 
GIVE HIM A CALL TO DISCUSS HIS ISSUES 
WITH THIS LOCATION

MRF Supervisor reached out 
to customer.  Recycle Center 

employee was coached.

Date Customer Name Address Compliment
April None
5.19.2020 WITTER, RICHARD 7103 KENTFIELD DR

PLEASE THANK THE DRIVER OF THE 
HOUSEHOLD TRASH TRUCK THAT SERVICED 
OUR NEIGHBORHOOD THIS MORNING FOR THE 
MUCH NICER TUESDAY MORNING EXPERIENCE 
THAN USUAL. THERE WERE NONE OF THE 
USUAL QUICK STOPS WITH SQUEALING 
BRAKES, NOR THE REPEATED SLAMMING UP 
AND DOWN OF THE MECHANICAL ARM WHEN 
EMPTYING THE CAN INTO THE TRUCK. WAS 
THIS A DIFFERENT DRIVER, OR DID OUR 
REGULAR DRIVER SWITCH TO DECAF? MAYBE 
GOT A GOOD NIGHT OF SLEEP? WHATEVER, 
THANK THAT PERSON. AND THANK YOU AND 
ALL AT YOUR SERVICE FOR NEVER FAILING. 
WE APPRECIATE YOU

June None
July None



Attachment 10F 

Page 2 of 2 

RESOLUTION No. 2020-18 
of the Board of Directors 

of the Cameron Park Community Services District 
August 19, 2020 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
AND WASTE CONNECTIONS OF CALIFORNIA, INC., 

DOING BUSINESS AS EL DORADO DISPOSAL SERVICES, 
AND ESTABLISHING RATES FOR THE COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTE 

WITHIN THE CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, the Cameron Park Community Services District (District) and Waste 
Connections of California, Inc., doing business as El Dorado Disposal Services (EDD), 
have entered into a Franchise Agreement, including Amendments thereto (Agreement), 
for the collection of solid waste within the Cameron Park Community Services District; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, EDD is proposing an Amendment to the Agreement between District 
and EDD to provide changed and enhanced services and extend the Agreement Term ten 
years to 2033 (Attachment 10A); and 

 

WHEREAS EDD is entitled to request certain rate increases for CPI and 
Extraordinary Circumstances as outlined in the Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, EDD has met or exceed Performance Standards, a qualifying 
condition for a rate adjustment; and 

 

WHEREAS, EDD is requesting a Rate Adjustment as depicted below;  

Current Rate add CPI Adjust add Recycle Adjust Total Change
35G CAN WEEKLY 26.40$              27.26$              27.58$                      28.43$                  2.04$                    
35G CAN WEEKLY SR 19.17$              19.80$              20.12$                      20.74$                  1.57$                    
64G CAN WEEKLY 29.52$              30.48$              30.80$                      31.76$                  2.24$                    
96G CAN WEEKLY 37.36$              38.58$              38.90$                      40.11$                  2.75$                    
3yd FEL 1x/wk 298.87$            308.65$           311.93$                   321.59$               22.71$                  
20yd RO 513.81$            530.61$           536.27$                   552.86$               39.05$                  

add MRF Rebuild 
New Proposed 

Rate



Attachment 10F 

Resolution No. 2020-18   Page 2 of 2 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  t he Board of Directors of the Cameron 
Park Community Services District approves:  

• An Amendment to the Agreement, which includes a ten-year extension to 
2033; and 

• A Rate Adjustment for CPI and Extraordinary Circumstances effective 
September 1, 2020 for both commercial and residential accounts. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Cameron Park 

Community Services District, at a regular scheduled meeting, held on the 19th day of 
August 2020, by the following vote of said Board: 
 
AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

 
____________________________________ ____________________________ 
Director Monique Scobey, President Jill Ritzman, General Manager  
Board of Directors      Secretary to the Board 
 



  

 

A Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 19, 2020 
  
FROM:                                   Vicky Neibauer, Finance/Human Resources Officer 
  
AGENDA ITEM #11: PUBLIC HEARING - STATING THE PURPOSES AND FIXING THE 

AMOUNT OF MONEY TO BE RAISED BY TAXATION TO THE 

DISTRICT TO PAY VOTER APPROVED DEBT FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR 2020-21 AND SETTING THE TAX RATE 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   APPROVE RESOLUTION 2020-19 
 
BACKGROUND  
Each year the District is required to adopt a Resolution levying a tax on all taxable property 
within the District to pay the debt service costs on the voter approved bonds used for the 
construction of the Community Center.   
 

The adopted Resolution must be attested by the Clerk of the Board and submitted to the El 
Dorado County Auditor-Controller’s office. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Resolution 2020-19 (Attachment 11A) sets the Fiscal Year 2020-21 tax rate at $0.021959 per 
$100 of secured assessed valuation of property on all taxable property within the District 
to pay the debt service costs on bonds used for the construction of the Community Center.  
Last year’s rate was $0.020895 per $100 of secured assessed valuation.  The increase in the 
rate reflects a larger bond principal payment and less available fund balance to offset the 
costs of the bond debt service.  
 

Staff was unable to take this item to the Budget and Administration Committee due to 
the timing of the Auditor Controller calculation of assessed property values.  The rate 
calculation has been reviewed by the Auditor Controller Office. 
 
Attachments: 
11A – Resolution 2020-19 
 



Attachment 11A 

Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION No. 2020-19 
of the Board of Directors of the  

Cameron Park Community Services District  
August 19, 2020 

RESOLUTION STATING THE PURPOSES AND FIXING THE AMOUNT OF 
MONEY TO BE RAISED BY TAXATION IN THE DISTRICT TO PAY VOTER 

APPROVED DEBT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 AND SETTING THE TAX RATE 
 

WHEREAS, a duly called municipal election (the “Election”) was held in the 
Cameron Park Community Services District, El Dorado County, State of California 
(hereinafter referred to as the “District”), on March 8, 2005, at which the following 
measure (the “Bond Measure”) was submitted to the qualified electors of the District:  

“To construct and equip a Cameron Park recreational community 
center, including meeting/classrooms, a youth activity area, facilities for 
senior citizen meals and programs, recreational and competition pools, 
gym, exercise/dance room, assembly hall with a theatre `and stage for 
community productions, shall Cameron Park Community Services District 
issue $8,500,000 of bonds at legal rates and appoint a Citizens’ Oversight 
Committee to maintain financial accountability, prevent waste and ensure 
that no bond money is used for operating expenses”  

WHEREAS, at such election, the Bond Measure received the affirmative vote of 
more than two thirds of the voters of the District voting on the proposition as certified 
by the Registrar of Voters of the County of El Dorado in the official canvassing of votes;  

WHEREAS, on August 24, 2005, the District issued $8,499,457.70 of such voter-
approved bonds (the “Bonds”)  

   WHEREAS, on July 9, 2014, the District refunded $7,436,000.00 of bonds to 
refinance the remaining balance of the 2005 bonds. 

WHEREAS, the District is in receipt of the statement of assessed values and the 
assessment roll for the fiscal year 2020-21 and the total assessed value of the land within 
the District is $2,616,089,440;  



Attachment 11A 

Resolution No. 2020-19   Page 1 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, the estimated minimum amount of money required to pay debt 
service on the Bonds for the current roll year is $597,190;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cameron 
Park Community Services District, El Dorado County, California, as follows:  

SECTION 1. For the purpose of paying debt service on the Bonds, the District 
hereby levies a tax of $.021959 for each $100 of secured assessed valuation of property on 
all taxable property within District for fiscal year 2020-21. 

SECTION 2. The District does hereby levy and affix the aforesaid taxes and tax 
rate on all taxable property within the District as described in Section 1 hereof and the 
District shall transmit a copy of this Resolution to the Auditor/Controller of the County 
of El Dorado.  

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19h day of August 2020, by the following vote of said 
Board:  

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST:  

__________________________________  ________________________________ 
Director Monique Scobey, President  Jill Ritzman, General Manager 
Board of Directors     Secretary to the Board    
   

   



Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Item #14A 

Budget and Administration Committee 
Tuesday, August 11, 2020 

5:30 p.m. 
 

TELECONFERENCE ZOOM MEETING 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82028199770 

 
Meeting ID: 820 2819 9770 

(Teleconference/Electronic Meeting Protocols are attached) 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 

Members:  Chair Director Eric Aiston (EA), Vice Chair Director Monique Scobey (MS),  
and Alternate Director Felicity Wood Carlson (FC) 

Staff:  Jill Ritzman, General Manager 
and Vicky Neibauer, Finance/Human Resources Officer 

 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL  
 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an 
issue is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the 
consent of the Committee; individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the 
audience are asked to volunteer their name before addressing the Committee.  The Committee reserves 
the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA  
 
APPROVAL OF CONFORMED AGENDA  
 
OPEN FORUM 
 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the responsibilities of 
the Committee. 

 
DEPARTMENT MATTERS 

  
1. El Dorado Disposal – Proposed Contract Amendment and Rate Adjustment (J. Ritzman, J. England) 

 
2. Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Final Budget (V. Neibauer) 



 

Budget and Administration Committee                           Agenda   Page 2 of 2 
August 11, 2020 

 
 

3. Annual Disclosure of Board and Employee Reimbursements (V. Neibauer) 

 
4. Staff Updates 

a. July Check Register Review (V. Neibauer) 
b. Legislative Updates (J. Ritzman) 
c. Taxation Rate (V. Neibauer) 

 
5. Items for September & Future Committee Meetings 

- Legislative Policy 

- Credit Card Transaction Monthly Reporting Communications 
- Strategic Plan Process 
- General Manager Performance Review Template 

 
6. Items to take to the Board of Directors 

 
MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS & STAFF      

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682  
   

 
Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions  (CC&R) Committee  

Monday, August 3, 2020 
5:30 p.m. 

 
TELECONFERENCE ZOOM MEETING 

 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84975171189 

 
Meeting ID: 849 7517 1189 

 (Teleconference/Electronic Meeting Protocols are attached) 
 

Agenda 
 

Members:  Chair Sidney Bazett (SB), Vice Chair Gerald Lillpop (GL), Bob Dutta (BD) 
Director Felicity Wood Carlson (FC), Director Holly Morrison (HM) 

Alternate Director Ellie Wooten 

Staff:  General Manager Jill Ritzman, CC&R Compliance Officer (vacant) 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an 
issue is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the 
consent of the Committee; individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the 
audience are asked to volunteer their name before addressing the Committee.  The Committee 
reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 
4. APPROVAL OF CONFORMED AGENDA  

 
5. OPEN FORUM  

 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the responsibilities 
of the Committee. 

 

Item #14B 



CC&R Committee August 3, 2020  Page 2 of 2 
 Agenda 

 
COMMITTEE REVIEW/ACTION 

 
6. MONTHLY STAFF REPORT 

6a. Open Violations 

• Initial Notices - 8 
• Final Notices - 4 
• Pre-Legal Notices – 3 (pending CC&R Officer replacement) 
• Pending – 4 
• Legal Cases – 1 (limited legal) 

 
6b. Architectural Review – July 

• Projects Reviewed – 20 
• Approved – 20 
• Denied – 0 
• Held Over to August – 0 

 
6c. Staff Update 

• Recruitment and selection process to fill CC&R Compliance Officer vacancy is ongoing 

 
7. Items for September and Future CC&R Committee Agendas 

 
8. Items to take to the Board of Directors 

 
9. MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 



Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

Fire and Emergency Services Committee 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 

5:30 p.m. 

Agenda 

Members:  Chair Director Ellie Wooten (EW), Vice Chair Director Monique Scobey (MS) 
Alternate Director Eric Aiston (EA) 

Staff:  General Manager Jill Ritzman, Chief Sherry Moranz, Chief Jed Gaines 

Meeting has 
been cancelled 
(See attached Fire Department 

report for updates) 

Item #14C



  

 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 4, 2020 
  
FROM: Jill Ritzman, General Manager 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  RECEIVE AND FILE 
     

STAFF UPDATE REGARDING FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
Staff is working on two items: the Fire Training Tower and the environmental 
determination for the CA Climate Investment Grant projects, which will be coming to the 
Fire Committee soon.  The following is an update regarding those two projects: 
 
Training Tower 
Staff continue to seek a fee waiver for necessary County permits related to the 
construction of the Fire Training Tower.  In addition, staff is seeking a specific scope of 
work and project costs from the contractor for the construction of base work and erecting 
the Tower.  Staff is hopeful to have this information for the Committee in September, so 
that the project can proceed for Board approval and construction can begin.   
 
Environmental Permit for CA Climate Investment Grant funded Fuel Reduction Projects 
Staff is seeking an environmental permit, under the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA), for additional fuel reduction projects funded by the California Climate 
Investment Grant.  These projects are on District and other public properties.  The District 
contracted with El Dorado Resource Conservation District to perform the environmental 
review and provide documentation.  Their work is concluded.  The next step is for the 
District to contact the local tribes for input.  Staff expects to have the Fire Committee 
review the environmental document, which at this time is a Categorical Exemption, in 
September.  
 

Item #14C



Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682  
 

  Page 1 of 2 
  

Parks & Recreation Committee  
Monday, August 3, 2020 

6:30 p.m. 
 

TELECONFERENCE ZOOM MEETING 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81305547989 

 
Meeting ID: 813 0554 7989 

(Teleconference/Electronic Meeting Protocols are attached) 
 

Agenda 
 

Members:  Chair Director Ellie Wooten (EW), Vice Chair Director Felicity Carlson (FC) 
Alternate Director Holly Morrison (HM) 

Staff:  General Manager Jill Ritzman, Recreation Supervisor Whitney Kahn, 
Parks Superintendent Mike Grassle 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER   

 
ROLL CALL  
 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an 
issue is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the 
consent of the Committee; individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the 
audience are asked to volunteer their name before addressing the Committee.  The Committee reserves 
the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 
APPROVAL OF CONFORMED AGENDAS – May 4th, 2020 & July 6th, 2020  

 
OPEN FORUM  
 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the responsibilites of the 
Committee. 
 

DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 

1. Park Improvement Plan – Strategies and Prioritizing (J. Ritzman, M. Grassle, Callander Associates) 

 

Item #14D 



Parks & Recreation Committee August 3, 2020 Page 2 of 2 
Agenda 

2. Staff Oral & Written Updates 

a. Parks & Facilities Report (M. Grassle) 
b. Recreation Report (W. Kahn) 

 
3. Items for September & Future Committee Agendas 

 
4. Items to take to the Board of Directors 

 
MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
ADJOURNMENT  


	0. 8.19.20 BOD Agenda
	Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens.
	Recognition of Service to the District – Kate Magoolaghan

	0. CPCSD Teleconference Meeting Protocols 4.2.20
	4. 7.15.20 BOD Conformed Agenda
	Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens.
	El Dorado County COVID-19 Update
	(Don Ashton, Chief Administrative Officer & Nancy Williams, County Health Officer)

	5. General Manager's Report
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	6. Policy 3020 staff report
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	6a. Policy 3020 Budget Prep revised
	7. Director-Employee Reimbursement report
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	7a. Director annual payments
	7b. Employee reimb
	3b. Employee paymt $100 or more (1)
	3b. Emplyees Pmts $100 or more (2)

	9. Budget staff report
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	9a. Budget Summary 1 - Final 2020-21
	5-19-2019

	9b. Fund Bal summary
	Sheet1

	9c. Final Budget - Abila
	9d. Final Budget RESOLUTION No 2020-17
	10. EDD Amendment & Rate Adj
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	10a. Third (3rd) Amendment to Cameron Park Solid Waste Collection Franchise Agreement
	Exhibit “B” To Solid Waste Services Agreement dated February 21, 2008, between Cameron Park Community Services District and Waste Connections of California, Inc.  d/b/a El Dorado Disposal services
	CONTRACTOR RATES
	[To be attached.]
	EXHIBIT “C” To Solid Waste Services Agreement dated February 21, 2008, between Cameron Park Community Services District and Waste Connections of California, Inc.  d/b/a El Dorado Disposal services
	PERFORMANCE CRITERIA
	Contractor will be awarded points in accordance with the performance criteria listed below.  A total of 105 points are available to Contractor.  Each point is equal to 1% of any CPI rate increase request.  In order to receive the full CPI rate increas...
	Residential Outreach:
	1. Contractor shall include three (3) billing inserts per year designed to educate residential customers about:  (i) “closing their lids” on their carts; (ii) cart placement guidelines; (iii) the Buy-Back Center; (iv) the Household Hazardous Waste Pro...
	2. Contractor shall provide each new District resident with a “New Resident Packet”, which shall include information on: (i) “closing their lids” on their carts; (ii) cart placement guidelines; (iii) the Buy-Back Center; (iv) the Household Hazardous W...
	3. Provide six (6) bi-monthly updates for the District’s solid waste and recycling webpage to be completed by a reasonable date agreed upon by the District and Contractor.
	4. Contractor shall work with residents and provide removal of items which are not allowed to be placed in bins during weekly pickup.  For example:  Batteries, bulky items and oil.  A Bulky item includes a large item equivalent to one regular couch or...
	Each subsection listed above shall be awarded five (5) points per operating year on a pass or fail basis, in no event shall partial points or the total points awarded per subsection per year be in excess of five (5) points.
	Commercial Outreach:
	1. Contractor agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to meet, in person, with at least four (4) commercial businesses each quarter to discuss:  (i) their waste and recycling needs; (ii) assisting them in reducing their trash; and (iii) increasi...
	2. Each year during the term, Contractor shall provide at least three (3) printed outreach material to commercial businesses regarding: (i) recycling; (ii) emphasizing potential cost-saving opportunities; and (iii) providing waste audits as requested ...
	3. Contractor shall include three (3) billing inserts per year educating commercial customers about:  (i) approved waste streams; (ii) recycling opportunities; (iii) bin placement; (iv) extra charges for “overage”; and (v) any other information as dis...
	The three (3) subsections listed above shall be awarded a combined total of five (5) points per operating year on a pass or fail basis, in no event shall partial points or the total points awarded for all sections combined per year be in excess of fiv...
	Community Event Outreach:
	Contractor shall attend a minimum of four (4) Community Events.  Contractor will provide information and outreach concerning refuse/waste activities, recycling education, rate or pick-up schedule changes, technological improvements related to waste/re...
	Five (5) points per event shall be awarded on a pass or fail basis, in no event shall partial points per event be awarded.  The total points awarded per year for this section may not be in excess of forty (40) points.
	Call Answer Rate:
	Contractor shall answer customer calls within an average of one hundred eighty (180) Thirds, as measured by Contractor’s phone system and reported to the District.  Contractor reporting shall include total number of calls, average hold time and averag...
	Five (5) points per quarter shall be awarded on a pass or fail basis; in no event shall partial points be awarded per quarter or total points awarded per year be in excess of twenty (20).
	Customer and Litter Complaint Resolution:
	Contractor shall on average correct 99.5% of valid customer complaints (including missed pick-up and litter complaints) per quarter for each Operating Year preceding the effective date of the price CPI adjustment within the time specified in Section 1...
	Five (5) points per quarter shall be awarded on a pass or fail basis; in no event shall partial points be awarded per quarter or total points awarded per year be in excess of twenty (20).
	For purposes of this performance measure, the term “valid customer complaint” shall mean complaints where:  (a) a customer contacts Contractor with a complaint; (b) Contractor’s customer service representative cannot satisfy/handle the complaint to th...
	Reporting:
	All reports required to be filed by Contractor with the District pursuant to Section 16 of the Agreement shall be timely filed within the periods specified in that Section.  In the event that Contractor does not submit reports to the District, no poin...
	Franchise Area Accounting:
	Annual audit of jurisdictional customers shall be completed collaboratively with District staff prior to 120 days of consideration of a rate increase.

	10b. Proposed Rates 8.12.20
	1C CP Common Rates & Comparison

	10c. Full Waste Connections Contract with Amendments
	10d. EDDS Commodity Revenue Analysis - 6-17-20 final
	1. Purpose of Analysis
	2. Summary of Analysis
	3. Background of Analysis
	4. Scope of Analysis
	5. Rate Setting Adjustments

	10e. Apr-July CP 2020 Monthly Performance Standards Report
	April
	Complaints-Compliments

	10f. Resolution 2020-18 Waste Management Rates
	11. Transmittal Resolution Tax for Bond Payment
	A Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	11a. Resolution 2020-19 - Tax for Bond Tax Rate
	14a. 8.11.20 BA Comm Agenda
	14b. 8.3.20 2020 CC&R Agenda
	14c. 8.4.20 Fire Agenda Packet
	0. 8.4.20 Fire Comm Agenda
	staff report
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal


	14d. 8.3.20 P&R Agenda



